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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

CHAIRMAN’S ADDRESS

Dear Shareholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all at the 10" Annual General Meeting of Ircon Shivpuri
Guna Tollway Limited and present the Annual Report of your Company for the Financial Year (FY)
2024-25. The Directors’ Report and Audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

have already been provided to all the shareholders. With your permission, | take them as read.

| would like to place before you, few highlights of your company for the FY 2024-25.

Your Company has been incorporated as a public limited company, Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)
and wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON) on May 12, 2015, and is a
government company in terms of the provisions of section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013. Your
Company is executing the project of National Highways Authority of India (NHAI) viz “Four-laning of
Shivpuri-Guna Section of NH-3 from 236.00 km to 332.100 km on Build Operate and Transfer (BOT)
(Toll) basis on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) pattern under NHDP Phase IV’
in the State of Madhya Pradesh with total length of 97.70 km (“the Project”). The approval for
commencement of Business has been obtained on May 27, 2015. In terms of the concession
agreement dated June 15, 2015, NHAI has granted right to construct, operate and maintain the Project
(the “Concession”) for 20 years (including construction period) commencing from the ‘Appointed Date’
i.e. January 25, 2016. The Project is to be executed in two stages viz Stage-l having length of 85.31
kms (i.e. stretch from Km 236.000 to Km 319.700) with execution period of 910 days (30 months) and
Stage-Il having length of 12.39 kms (i.e. stretch from Km 319.700 to Km 332.100) with execution

period of 12 months.



The total cost approved for the execution of the Project is 872.11 Cr. and was allocated in the equity
share capital of 150 Cr. (100% held by IRCON) and debt portion of ¥722.11 Cr., which was initially
approved by IRCON as loan and partially availed by IrconSGTL. The details of existing secured loan
availed by your Company are detailed in para on ‘Secured Loan and Rating’ in the report at para no.5
below.

Stage-l Project: The total cost allocated in the financial model for the Stage-| Project is ¥759.98 Cr.,
for which IRCON was engaged as EPC Contractor at original EPC Cost of *642 Cr. The Scheduled
Commercial Operation Date (COD) was July 23, 2018 i.e., within 910 Days from the ‘Appointed Date’
of January 25, 2016. The COD for Stage-I of the project was achieved one and a half month ahead of
the schedule i.e., on June 6, 2018. After completion of the construction of Stage-I Project and issue of
provisional completion certificate by Independent Engineer, the operation of toll plaza and collection of
revenue started w.e.f. June 07, 2018. The completion certificate for Stage-l Project was issued by
NHAI w.e.f. September 27, 2018. The project is presently in Operations & Maintenance (O&M) phase

with respect to Stage-| project.

Stage-ll Project: The total cost allocated in the financial model for the Stage-Il Project is ¥112.12 Cr.,
for which IRCON has been engaged as EPC Contractor on cost plus 5% basis, on January 01, 2021.
The completion period for the construction of Stage-Il project was initially 12 months from the letter of
award to EPC Contractor or handover of site, whichever is later. The Stage-ll execution has been
completed for 12.39 Km road length and PCOD-1 of 10.39 Km was obtained on 17.12.2022. and
PCOD-2 was issued by IE for balance stretch of 2.0 Km on 01.06.2023. Thus revenue collection along
with the O&M phase for the entire project length of 97.70km is going on. The completion certificate for
Stage-ll Project was issued by Independent engineers (IE) w.e.f. May 10, 2024.

During the year under review, the revenue from toll operations has registered an increase of 0.36% to
166.77 Cr. in FY 2024-25 against 166.16 Cr. in FY 2023-24. The total revenue for the FY 2024-25 is
%173.65 Cr. as against ¥175.88 Cr. for the previous financial year registering decrease of 1.27%. The
loss before tax is 22.58 Cr. for the FY 2024-25 as against loss of 6.39 Cr. for the previous financial
year registering increase in loss by 253.36% mainly due to higher major maintenance expenses.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Your Company has achieved revenue from toll operations of ¥166.77 Crore as against 166.16 Crore
for the previous financial year, thus registering an increase of 0.36%. The loss before tax was %22.58
Crore for the FY 2024-25 as against the loss of ¥6.39 Crore for the previous financial year implying

Increase in loss by 253.36%.

The authorized as well as paid-up equity share capital of the Company stood at Rs.150 Crore. As on
March 28, 2022, your Company, had availed re-financing term loan facility / secured loan of 501 Cr.
from State Bank of India (SBI) supported by Corporate Guarantee of IRCON. As on March 31, 2025

an amount of ¥458.43 Cr. was outstanding.



The company has taken an unsecured loan of ¥18.57 crore against a sanctioned amount of ¥35
crores from Ircon International Limited on September 20, 2024 for the construction of Stage-Il

Project. As on March 31, 2025 an amount of ¥18.57 Cr. was outstanding.

COMPLIANCES AND DISCLOSURES

Corporate Governance: Compliances and disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
thereunder are being fully adhered to by your Company. Your company is also exempt from the
compliance with the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) Guidelines on Corporate Governance for
CPSEs being a wholly-owned subsidiary of IRCON and a CPSE constituted as SPV.

MoU: IRCON has granted exemption to the Company from signing of MoU with IRCON for the

financial year 2024-25 as well as for financial year 2025-26.

JOURNEY AHEAD

The revenue generated from the toll operations of the project are intended to cover the operating cost,
repayment of principal amount of debt and financing costs. The initiatives taken by Government of
India / NHAI for ensuring seamless travel, better infrastructure and connectivity for the highway users
like ‘Bharat Nirman’ programmes linking all unconnected villages with fair weather roads, measures for
improving electronic toll collection etc. will further enhance the efficiency of toll operations and future

growth of the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of Board of Directors, | express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and co-
operation extended to the Company by the MoRTH and NHAI for their support and guidance to the
Company. Further, | record my sincere appreciation for the cooperation extended by the holding
Company, Ircon International Limited, the office of Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG), the
Auditors, Bankers of the Company and other professionals associated with the Company.

| would also like to thank my colleagues on the Board and the Company's employees for their

unstinting support. | look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.

For and on behalf of
Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

Sd/-
(Yogesh Kumar Misra)
Chairman
[DIN: 07654014]
Date: 29.07.2025
Place: New Delhi
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,
The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 10" Annual Report and Audited Financial
Statements of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2025.

1.  FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
The key highlights on the financial performance of your company for the Financial Year

(FY) ended March 31, 2025 with comparative position of previous year’'s performance are

as under:
(Amount in % Cr.)
Sl. No. Financial Parameters Year ended | Year ended
31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
1 Revenue from Toll Operations 166.77 166.16
2 Construction Contract Revenue - 2.86
3 Revenue from Construction Services (Change of
Scope and other works) i )
4 Other Operating Revenue 0.44 0.41
S Other Income 6.44 6.45
6 Total Income [(1) + (2)] 173.65 175.88
7 Project Expenses 107.00 93.82
8 Administration Expenses (including finance cost 89.15 88.33
and depreciation, amortization & impairment) ) '
9 Other Expenses 0.08 0.12
10 | Total Expenses [(4) + (5) + (6)] 196.23 182.27
11 | Profit / (Loss) Before Tax [(3) — (7)] (22.58) (6.39)
12 | Profit / (Loss) After Tax (22.58) (6.39)

The financial statements for the FY 2024-25 have been prepared in pursuance of the
provisions of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in conformity with

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

2. OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:
Your Company has been incorporated as a public limited company, Special Purpose
Vehicle (SPV) and wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON) on May
12, 2015, and is a government company in terms of the provisions of section 2(45) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Your Company is executing the project of National Highways
Authority of India (NHAI) viz “Four-laning of Shivpuri-Guna Section of NH-3 from 236.00 km
to 332.100 km on Build Operate and Transfer (BOT) (Toll) basis on Design, Build, Finance,
Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) pattern under NHDP Phase IV’ in the State of Madhya
Pradesh with total length of 97.70 km (“the Project”). The approval for commencement of

Business has been obtained on May 27, 2015. In terms of the concession agreement

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2024-25
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dated June 15, 2015, NHAI has granted right to construct, operate and maintain the Project
(the “Concession”) for 20 years (including construction period) commencing from the
‘Appointed Date’ i.e. January 25, 2016. The Project is to be executed in two stages viz
Stage-l having length of 85.31 kms (i.e. stretch from Km 236.000 to Km 319.700) with
execution period of 910 days (30 months) and Stage-ll having length of 12.39 kms (i.e.
stretch from Km 319.700 to Km 332.100) with execution period of 12 months.

The total cost approved for the execution of the Project is ¥872.11 Cr. and was allocated in
the equity share capital of 150 Cr. (100% held by IRCON) and debt portion of 722.11 Cr.,
which was initially approved by IRCON as loan and partially availed by IrconSGTL. The
details of existing secured loan availed by your Company are detailed in para on ‘Secured

Loan and Rating’ in the report at para no.5 below.

Stage-l Project: The total cost allocated in the financial model for the Stage-I Project is
759.98 Cr., for which IRCON was engaged as EPC Contractor at original EPC Cost of
642 Cr. The Scheduled Commercial Operation Date (COD) was July 23, 2018 i.e., within
910 Days from the ‘Appointed Date’ of January 25, 2016. The COD for Stage-I of the
project was achieved one and a half month ahead of the schedule i.e., on June 6, 2018.
After completion of the construction of Stage-I Project and issue of provisional completion
certificate by Independent Engineer, the operation of toll plaza and collection of revenue
started w.e.f. June 07, 2018. The completion certificate for Stage-| Project was issued by
NHAI w.e.f. September 27, 2018. The project is presently in Operations & Maintenance
(O&M) phase with respect to Stage-I project.

Stage-ll Project: The total cost allocated in the financial model for the Stage-Il Project is
%112.12 Cr., for which IRCON has been engaged as EPC Contractor on cost plus 5%
basis, on January 01, 2021. The completion period for the construction of Stage-Il project
was initially 12 months from the letter of award to EPC Contractor or handover of site,
whichever is later. The Stage-Il execution has been completed for 12.39 Km road length
and PCOD-1 of 10.39 Km was obtained on 17.12.2022. and PCOD-2 was issued by IE for
balance stretch of 2.0 Km on 01.06.2023. Thus revenue collection along with the O&M
phase for the entire project length of 97.70km is going on. The completion certificate for

Stage-ll Project was issued by Independent engineers (IE) w.e.f. May 10, 2024.
During the year under review, the revenue from toll operations has registered an increase

of 0.36% to %166.77 Cr. in FY 2024-25 against 166.16 Cr. in FY 2023-24. The total
revenue for the FY 2024-25 is ¥173.65 Cr. as against ¥175.88 Cr. for the previous financial

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2024-25
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year registering decrease of 1.27%. The loss before tax is 22.58 Cr. for the FY 2024-25
as against loss of 6.39 Cr. for the previous financial year registering increase in loss by
253.36% mainly due to higher major maintenance expenses.

3. SHARE CAPITAL:
The authorized, paid-up and subscribed equity share capital of the Company is ¥150 Cr.
comprising of 15,00,00,000 equity shares of ¥10/- each as on March 31, 2025.

During the year under review, there was no change in the share capital of your Company,

and Ircon International Limited continues to hold 100% paid-up share capital of IrconSGTL.

4. DIVIDEND, RESERVES AND NET WORTH:
The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend on the equity shares of the
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025.

Your Company has a net worth of ¥18.39 Cr., after considering negative balance of 131.61
Cr. in the Reserves as on March 31, 2025.

5. SECURED/ UNSECURED LOANS AND RATING:
The financial closure of the project of your Company was achieved by tying up the entire
debt requirement of ¥722.11 Cr. from the holding company, Ircon International Limited in
the form of secured loan. As on March 28, 2022, your company, had availed re-financing
term loan facility / secured loan of ¥501 Cr. from State Bank of India (SBI) supported by
Corporate Guarantee of IRCON. As on March 31, 2025 an amount of ¥458.43 Crore was

outstanding.

The company has taken an unsecured loan of ¥18.57 crore against a sanctioned amount
of 35 crores from Ircon International Limited on September 20, 2024 for the construction

of Stage-Il Project. As on March 31, 2025 an amount of ¥18.57 Cr. was outstanding.

During the FY 2024-25, CARE Ratings Limited has reaffirmed ‘CARE AAA (CE)’ rating
for the long-term bank facilities.

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE
OF THE REPORT:
No material changes and commitments have occurred which affect the financial position of

the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2024-25
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7. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
The particulars as prescribed under the provisions of section 134(3)(m) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as follows:
A. Conservation of Energy:
(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy — NIL
(i) the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy — Solar
powered blinkers were installed at median openings in the project stretch at
a total cost of approx. ¥12 Lakh.

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment — NIL

B. Technology Absorption: Not Applicable

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption;

(i) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution;

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year)
(a) the details of technology imported;
(b) the year of import;
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed;
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the

reasons thereof; and

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the year: Not Applicable
(i) Foreign Exchange Earned
(i) Foreign Exchange Outgo

8. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D):

No R&D activities were carried out during the period under review.

9. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP):
DIRECTORS:

Shri Yogesh Kumar Misra (having DIN: 07654014), Chairman, Smt. Marzia Fatima (having
DIN: 10478302) and Shri Abheejit Kumar Sinha [having DIN: 09213782], who were

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2024-25
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appointed as Additional Directors of the Company, was regularized at the last Annual

General Meeting of the Company held on 12" August, 2024.

During the year under review, the holding Company [IRCON] had nominated Mr. Santanu
Mukherjee [having DIN:10895834], as Part time Director (Additional Director) of your
Company with effect from January 03, 2025, vice Mr. Abheejit Kumar Sinha (having DIN:
09213782), who ceased to be Director of your Company with effect from December 20,
2024 consequent to withdrawal of nomination by the holding Company [IRCON].
Appointment of Shri Santanu Mukherjee is proposed to be regularized at the ensuing 10™
AGM of the Company and has been included in the notice of ensuing AGM.

Shri Masood Ahmad (having DIN: 09008553), Director, was reappointed as director liable
to retire by rotation at the 9" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 12" August,
2024.

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2025, was as

follows:

Category, Name & Designation Appointment or  Cessation

(during the year, if any)

Mr. Yogesh Kumar Misra, Chairman | 07654014 | Appointed w.e.f. 01.02.2024

Mr. Masood Ahmad, Director 09008553 | Appointed w.e.f. 02.08.2021
Ms. Marzia Fatima, Director 10478302 | Appointed w.e.f. 23.01.2024
Mr. Santanu Mukherjee, Director 10895834 | Appointed w.e.f. 03.01.2025

Mr. Abheejit Kumar Sinha, Director | 09213782 | Ceased w.e.f. 20.12.2024

None of the Directors are related to each other.

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Marzia Fatima, [having DIN:
10478302], Director is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of
your Company and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

The details of Directors seeking re-appointment / appointment at the ensuing AGM are
contained in the Notice convening ensuing AGM of the Company.

After the closure of the financial year, the holding company has nominated Mr. Varun Kumar
Singh, Manager (Civil) as Chief Executive Officer (CEQO) of your Company w.e.f. June 05,

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2024-25
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2025 and also he has been designated as Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the
Company vice Mr. Uttam Shamrao Thorat, Deputy General Manager (Civil), IRCON,
consequent to his relieving from the post of CEO and KMP of your Company w.e.f. May 22,
2025.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, the following were
the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company as on March 31, 2025:

S. No. Name Designation
1. Shri Uttam Shamrao Thorat Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)
2. Smt. Rachna Tomar Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
3. Smt. Pooja Gurwala Company Secretary

10. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AGM AND ATTENDANCE OF
DIRECTORS:
During the financial year 2024-25, Five (5) Board Meetings were held i.e. on 3" April, 2024;
10" May, 2024; 2" August, 2024, 29" October, 2024 and 315t January, 2025. The Meetings
of the Board are held at regular intervals with a time gap of not more than 120 days between
two consecutive Meetings. All the Board meetings were held through physical mode. All the
meetings of the Board of Directors and Annual General Meeting were held at the registered

office of the Company.

The attendance details of the Board Meetings is as follows:

S. No. | Date of the Meting Board Strength No. of Directors
Present
1. 03.04.2024 4 4
2. 10.05.2024 4 4
3. 02.08.2024 4 4
4. 29.10.2024 4 4
5. 31.01.2025 4 4

The details of Director’s attendance at Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting held
during FY 2024-25 are tabled below:

Board Attendance of Directors
Meeting / - - - = - -

Shri Yogesh Shri Masood | Shri Abheeijit | Ms. Marzia | Shri  Santanu

AGM : ) -
Kumar Misra Ahmad Kumar Sinha Fatima Mukherjee

Held on (upto 20.12.2024) (w.ef.

03.01.2025)
03.04.2024 v v v v N.A.

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2024-25
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10.05.2024 v v, v. N.A.
02.08.2024 v v v N.A.
29.10.2024 v v v N.A.
31.01.2025 v v N.A. v v
AGM v v v v N.A.
12.08.2024

N.A. - Not appointed as director on said date.
LA- Leave of Absence

11. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS, COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AND
EXEMPTIONS THERETO:
In terms of provisions of section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 4 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, unlisted public
companies, which are wholly owned subsidiaries are exempted from the requirement of
appointing Independent Directors on their Board. Also, read with the provisions of section
177(1), 178(1) and rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014, the requirement of constitution of 'Audit Committee' and 'Nomination and

Remuneration Committee', is not applicable on such companies.

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) OM dated July 8-10, 2014 read
with OM dated July 11, 2019, the CPSE’s constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)
are exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for
CPSEs.

Accordingly, IrconSGTL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary
company of IRCON, is not required to appoint Independent Directors on its Board, and the
declaration by the Independent Directors is also not applicable. Further, the constitution of
Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board is also not

applicable.

12. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION:
In terms of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification no. GSR 463(E) dated June 05,
2015, the provisions of section 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with sub-rule 4
of rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule 2014 and section 178(2) of the Companies Act,
2013, regarding annual evaluation of the Board, its Committees and of the individual
directors, is not applicable to the Government Companies, in case the Directors are
evaluated by the Ministry which is administrative in-charge of the Company as per its own

evaluation methodology.

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2024-25
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IrconSGTL is a Government Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of IRCON. All the
Directors of your company are nominated by the holding company, who are subject to
evaluation by the holding company as per its pre-defined criteria in line with the guidelines

of the Government of India.

13. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:
The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, relating to Corporate Social

Responsibility (CSR) were not applicable to the Company during the period under review.

14. RISK MANAGEMENT:
In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat / risk

to the business of the Company.

15. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:
Adequate internal financial controls are exercised in the Company, keeping in view the size
of operations of the Company. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting
Standards for properly maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial

statements.

The Company has appointed an independent firm of Chartered Accountants as Internal
Auditors to ensure that the Company’s systems and practices are designed with adequate
internal controls to match the size and nature of operations of the Company. The Internal
Auditors conduct a half yearly audit and review, covering all areas of operation. The Reports
of the Auditors along with the management’s responses are placed before the Board of

Directors for discussion and necessary action.

16. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
As on March 31, 2025, the Company has 8 employees, which included 4 employees
deputed by the holding company which are on regular basis, and 4 employees appointed

by your Company on contract basis.

The provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to managerial
remuneration and requirements of disclosures in the Board’s Report as specified under
section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the related rules thereto are not applicable

on the Government companies in terms of notification no. GSR 463(E) dated June 5, 2015

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2024-25
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issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Accordingly, such particulars are not
included as part of Directors’ Report.

No remuneration is being paid to the Directors of the Company.

17. VIGIL MECHANISM:
In compliance with the provisions of section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, with respect
to establishment of vigil mechanism, the Board of Directors have approved vigil mechanism
for employees and directors to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or
suspected frauds and to provide safeguard against victimization of employees and

Directors who avail the mechanism.

The requirement of appointment of Independent Directors and constitution of Audit
Committee is not applicable on the Company. Thus, the Board of Directors have nominated
a director for the purpose of vigil mechanism to whom other directors and employees may

report their concerns.

Under the vigil mechanism adopted by your Company, the complaints of

(a) nominated / deputed employees from the holding company shall be addressed as per
the ‘Whistle blower policy’ of IRCON (Holding Company), which is available at the
website of the IRCON at the link

https://www.ircon.org/index.php?option=com _content&view=article&id=212&Iltemid=6

06&lang=en along with the names and other details of the officials to whom the
complaints are to be addressed.
(b) for other persons in the employment of the Company, the Complaints shall be
addressed to:
Shri Masood Ahmad, Director,
Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (IrconSGTL)
Address: C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi — 110017
Phone No.: +91-011-26545410

Email id: masood.ahmad@ircon.org

No complaint was received during the FY 2024-25 and no person have been denied access

to the aforementioned designated officials / vigil mechanism adopted by the Company.

| ANNUAL REPORT FY 2024-25
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18. PROTECTION OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE:

Your Company has adopted the ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual
Harassment at Workplace’ (POSH Policy) formulated by the holding company, IRCON,
which is available at the website of the holding company at link

https://www.ircon.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=212&Itemid=606&I

ang=en. The Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) of IRCON formed at the Corporate
Office as well as its nearest project office shall be the ICC of IrconSGTL, for dealing with
matters under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Further, the desired details are as follows:
(a) number of complaints of sexual harassment received in the year — 0

(b) number of complaints disposed off during the year — 0

(c) number of cases pending for more than ninety days - 0

Also, Provisions relating to the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, has been complied with.

19. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING:
Your Company has requested IRCON to grant it exemption from compliance of Annual MoU
exercise for the financial year 2025-26, in line with the Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) Guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) and IRCON vide its
letter dated 20™ February, 2025 has granted exemption to the Company from compliance

of Annual MOU exercise for the financial year 2025-26.

20. MSME COMPLIANCES:
In exercise of powers conferred by the provisions of section 9 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions
that all companies registered under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than
250 Crore and all CPSEs shall be required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade
Receivables Discounting System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of the
Reserve Bank of India. The Registrar of Companies (RoC) in each State shall be the
competent authority to monitor the compliance of such instructions and also the Department
of Public Enterprises, Government of India shall be the competent authority to monitor the
compliance of such instructions by the CPSEs. In compliance with the above instruction,

the Company has boarded on the TReDS platform w.e.f. December 16, 2019, to facilitate
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the financing of trade receivables of MSEs by discounting of their receivables and

realisation of their payment before the due date.

The Annual Procurement targets from MSEs have been complied during FY 2024-25.

21. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

(Pursuant to section 134(3)(c) of Companies Act, 2013)

In accordance with section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of

the Company hereby confirms: -

(a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) thatthe directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year
and loss of the company for that period;

(c) that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

(d) that the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) that the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating

effectively.

22. AUDITORS:
STATUTORY AUDITORS:
The Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) appointed M/s S R J N & CO LLP,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 0009063N/N500041) as the Statutory
Auditors of your Company for the FY 2024-25, in terms of the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013.

COST AUDITORS:

In accordance with the provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company has maintained cost
accounts and records. M/s Chandra Wadhwa & Co, Cost Accountants were appointed as
the Cost Auditors of the Company for FY 2024-25, in terms of the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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INTERNAL AUDITORS:

Your Company had appointed M/s Singhal Sunil & Associates, Chartered Accountants as
the Internal Auditors of the Company for FY 2024-25, in terms of the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. During the year under review, M/s Singhal Sunil & Associates had
conducted internal audit on half-yearly basis and submitted their report to the Board of

Directors.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:

Pursuant to provision of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, your Company has
appointed M/s Vasisht & Associates, Company Secretary in practice (CP No. 21476), as
the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report
for FY 2024-25 do not contain any adverse observations and forms part of this Report.

23. STATUTORY AUDITROS’ REPORT AND C&G COMMENTS:
The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for FY 2024-25 with NIL
observation are attached separately as part of the Annual Report along with No Review
Certificate from Comptroller & Auditor General (C&AG) of India for the FY 2024-25.

24, ANNEXURES TO THE REPORT:

The following certificate / reports etc. are annexed and forms an integral part of this report:

A. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES: During FY 2024-25 the related party transactions were with the holding
company, IRCON and were approved in terms of the Companies Act, 2013. These
transactions were at arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the
Company. The details of Related Party Transactions in form AOC-2 is enclosed to this
report as ‘Appendix-A’.

B. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT: The Secretarial Audit Report by M/s Vasisht &

Associates is enclosed to this report as ‘Appendix-B’.

25. OTHER DISCLOSURES:
(i)  Your Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of
Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’ during the FY 2024-25.
(i)  Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the financial

year.
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(iii)  Your Company does not have Subsidiary / Associate / Joint Venture Company.

(iv) There was no change in the nature of business of your company during the year
ended March 31, 2025.

(v) No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 has been received by your
company during the FY 2024-25, however, RTI applications transferred from DPE
were duly replied during the FY 2024-25.

(vi) There were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which
would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.
Further, there were no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors vide their Report
for the FY 2024-25.

(vii) There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency
& Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company.The
Company has not given any loans or guarantees or made any investment covered
under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(viii) All Directors had disclosed his nature of their interest / concern in the company or
companies or bodies corporate, firms, or other association of individuals as required

under the Companies Act, 2013 from time to time.
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DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED INTO BY
THE COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF
SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 INCLUDING CERTAIN ARM’S LENGTH
TRANSACTIONS UNDER FOURTH PROVISO THERETO, FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-

25

FORM NO. AOC-2

‘Appendix-A’

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: As

follows:
Name of the Nature of Duration of Salient terms | Date of | Amount
related party contracts / contracts / of contracts / |approval| received /
and nature arrangements / | arrangements | arrangements / | by the | paid as
of transactions [ transactions | transactions, | BoD, if | advances
relationship including the any by
value, if any IrconSGTL,
if any
(XinCr.)
Ircon EPC Date: EPC | Execution of {26.11.20| X3 Cr.
International Agreement Agreement complete scope 20 recovered
Limited executed on|of work of from RA
(IRCON), (For appointing | 20.01.2021. Stage-ll of the bills
Holding IRCON as project ‘Four
Company EPC Duration: 12 | laning of
Contractor) months  from | Shivpuri to
letter of award | Guna from Km
dated 319.700 to Km
01.01.2021 or | 332.100 in the
handover  of | State of Madhya
site, whichever | Pradesh.
is later.
Lease Date: Lease | Rent: @ |22.03.20 NIL
Agreement Agreement 23,359/- p.m. 23
executed on | plus GST for an
(To take on | 05.04.2023 area of 65 sqm.
lease premises
of IRCON as | Duration:
the Registered | 01.07.2023 to
Office 31.03.2025
Premises  of
IrconSGTL)
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3. | EPC Date: Appointment of
Agreement 22.06.2023 EPC Contractor {12.05.20| %17.70 Cr.
for execution of 23 recovered
(For appointing Maijor from RA
IRCON as | Duration: 12 | Maintenance bills
EPC months  for | (Bituminous
Contractor) major Overlay) and
maintenance | three years
and 3 years | Routine
for Routine | Maintenance of
maintenance | Project Highway

Note:

1. Apart from the above transactions, the holding company has also deputed its employees to
IrconSGTL, which is on actual cost (CTC) basis. The salary benefits paid to such deputed
employees is as per IRCON'’s policy and are being reimbursed by IrconSGTL on actual basis.

2. The details of “Related Party Disclosures” as per accounting standards are being disclosed
in Notes to the accounts in the Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Yogesh Kumar Misra)
Chairman
[DIN: 07654014]
Date: 29.07.2025
Place: New Delhi
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Vasisht & Associates
Company Secretaries

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2074]

To,

The Members,

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2015G0I1280017

C-4, District Centre, Saket, South Delhi, Delhi-110017, India

I, Shobhit Vasisht, Proprietor of Vasisht & Associates, have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by IRCON
SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED (hereinafter called 'the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on the verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion,
the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the provisions of:

() The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;(Not
Applicable to the Company)

Regd Office: 441, Sector-2, Faridabad-121004, Haryana, India
Email: cs@vasishtassociates.com, Web: www.vasishtassociates.com
Contact No: +91-9953259389, +91-9220471009

Digitally signed

SHOBHIT by sHosHiT
VASISHT
VASISHT pate:2025.06.25

12:29:34 +05'30"
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(iii)

(iv)

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder ;(Not Applicable
to the Company)

The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings ;(Not
Applicable to the Company)

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’):-

(@)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;(Not Applicable to the Company)

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(Not Applicable to the Company)

(c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;(Not Applicable to the Company)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;(Not Applicable to the Company)

(e)  The Securities and Exchange board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021;(Not Applicable to the Company)

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 and amendments thereof regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;(Not Applicable to the Company)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity shares) Regulations, 2021;(Not
Applicable to the Company)

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of securities) Regulations, 2018;(Not
Applicable to the Company)

0) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible Securities)
Regulations 2021;(Not Applicable to the Company)

(vi) I further report that the system and processes of the Company are in place to ensure the

compliance with general laws like Labour Laws,The Indian Contract Act, 1872, The Sexual
Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 etc. For the
purpose of examining adequacy of compliance with other applicable laws including industry/ sector
specific laws, under both Central and State legislation, reliance has been placed on the
representation made by the Company and its officers for systems and mechanism formed by the
Company for the compliance under these laws.

Digitally signed by

SHOBH I-I-SHOBHITVASISHT 2
Date: 2025.06.25

VAS I S HT 12:29:52 +05'30'
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The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, has not been
reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to review by the statutory auditor(s) and other
designated professionals.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable provisions of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board
and General Meeting;

(ii) Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs) issued by the
Department of Public Enterprises vide their OM No. 18(8)/2005-GM dated 14th May, 2010.

(However, it is understood that as the Company is constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), and such
companies have got an exemption for appointment of independent directors, submitting Quarterly report
and other Compliances of Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises
(DPE), vide its O.M. dated July 11, 2019 and July 8, 2014.)

Ireport that during the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Standards and Guidelines etc. mentioned above.

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company has been duly constituted with Non-Executive Directors
(including Women Director) as nominated by its Holding Company (“Ircon International Limited”),as per
the Articles of Association of the Company. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, except for meetings of the Board of Directors, where
consent for shorter notice was obtained. System exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented by the management, were taken unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors.

As per the explanations given to me and the representations made by the Management and relied upon
by me, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

Digitally signed by
S H OBH IT SHOBHIT VASISHT

VASISH

Date: 2025.06.25 3
12:31:51 +05'30'
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During the period under review, as explained and represented by the management, there were no

specific events/actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards

etc, having a major bearing on the Company'’s affairs.

Date: June 25, 2025
Place: Faridabad

For VASISHT & ASSOCIATES;
(Company Secretaries)
SHOBHIT oty
VASISHT oo

CS SHOBHIT VASISHT

UDIN: FO11517G000656799
PR No: 2355/2022

FCS No: 11517

C P No: 21476

Note: This report is to be read with the letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an

integral part of this report.
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To,

Annexure-A

The Members,

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2015G0OI280017

C-4, District Centre, Saket, South Delhi, Delhi-110017, India

This report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on the audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices,
i followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the Company.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

FOR VASISHT & ASSOCIATES;
(Company Secretaries)
SHOBHIT 25 sy
VASISHT 5530

CS SHOBHIT VASISHT
UDIN: FO11517G000656799
PR No: 2355/2022

FCS No: 11517

C P No: 21476

Date: June 25, 2025
Place: Faridabad
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SRJN &COLLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

C-699A, 1st Floor, Near Siksha Bharti School, Palam Extn, Sector-7, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075
* Tel. : 011-49067140 - Mob : 9810694601, - e-mail : srjnlip@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To THE MEMBERS OF
IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of M/s IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA
TOLLWAY LIMITED (a wholly owned subsidiary of M/s IRCON International Limited
(“the parent Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the statement of Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS"”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its losses including
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing ("SA"s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAL") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Repeort
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises Directors Report along with its annexures including Secretarial
Audit Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Such other information is expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Contd...2
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and in doing so
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the report mentioned above, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance. As the other information is not made available to us as at the date of
this auditor’s report, we have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134
(5) of the Company’s Act (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including Other Comprehensive Income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as
amended. This responsibility -also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
ic a high level of accurance, but ic not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Contd...3
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Contd...4
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure-I a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable,

We are enclosing our report in terms of Section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis
of such checks of the books and records of the company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, in
the Annexure-II on the directions and sub-directions issued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

(A)

a.

(B)

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations,
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit,

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books,

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account,

the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR
463(E) dated 5% June 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India, provisions of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the
Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to Annexure III;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in the financial statements. Refer Note No. 32 to the

financial statements.

The company did not have long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

Contd...5
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C. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d. (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in Note No. 37 (v)
to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf
of the Company or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note No 37(vi) to the
financial statement , no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of
the Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been
considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e)
contain any material mis-statement.

e. The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year.

fi Based on our examination, which included test checks, the company has
used accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which have the feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software
systems. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail
has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements
for record retention.

(©) Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR
463(E) dated 5™ June 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India, provisions of sub-section (16) of Section 197 of
the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company;

FORSRIJIN&COLLP
(Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :009063N/N500041

Date: 02" May 2025 M/Y"'

Place: New Delhi

A Jai Prakash Rarh

Partner

M.No.: 501283

UDIN: 25501283 BMOZHD4037
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Annexure-I

ANNEXURE OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to paragraph (1) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and

Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(@)  (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and
equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has conducted physical verification of the property, plant
and equipment during the financial year under audit, and no
discrepancies observed related to fixed assets appearing under Fixed
Assets Register.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements
are duly executed in favor of the lessee), consequently clause 3(i)(c) of
the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of
use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no
proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions
Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) The company does not have any inventory and consequently, clause
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
the security of current assets at any point of time during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has
not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans , secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties,
consequently, clause 3(iii)(a)(b)(c)(d)(e)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not given any loan, guarantee, security or made investment
as stipulated under Sections 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, consequently,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to
be deposits from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable.

Contd...2
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

-2-

The Company has maintained cost records as required under section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013. However, we are neither required to carry out, nor
have carried out any detailed examination of such accounts and records.

(a) The company has been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
material statutory dues as applicable to it. Being a wholly owned
subsidiary of M/s IRCON International Limited (the parent company),
majority of the employees are on standby deputation basis, therefore,
statutory dues related to such employees, such as Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance Company, Professional Tax, as applicable,
are being deducted and deposited by the parent company. However,
Employees who are on the payroll of the company, all the employees
related statutory dues, such as Provident Fund, Professional Tax as
applicable, are being deducted and deposited by company on regular
basis.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of records of the Company, there are no
statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax, provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given te us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not
surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us by the management, term loans were applied for the purpose for
which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an
overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that

no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term
purposes by the Company.

Contd...3
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()

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(e)

Q)

(a)

(b)

(b)

(c)

-3-

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we
report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, as
defined in the Act. The Company does not hold any investment in any
associate or joint venture (as defined in the Act) during the year ended

31 March 2025.

According to the information and explanations given to us and
procedures performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries
(as defined under the Act).

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer (including debt
instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and
according to the information and explanations given to us, considering
the principles of materiality outlined in the Standard of Auditing, we
report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report
under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year while determining the nature, timing
and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the transactions with related party is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of
the Act, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(a)

(b)

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit
procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till
date for the period under audit.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the
Act are not applicable to the Company.

Contd...4
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(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45- IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, the requirement
to report, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from
the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause
3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to information and explanations provided to us during the
course of audit, the Group does not have any CICs.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act
pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the
Order are not applicable.

(xxi) The company has not prepared consolidated financial statement. Therefore,
reporting under clause xxi of the order is not applicable.

Date: 02" May 2025 FORSRJN&COLLP
Place: New Delhi (Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :009063N/N500041

W

CA Jai Prakash Rarh
Partner
M.No.: 501283

UDIN: 25501283BMOZHD4037
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ANNEXURE OF THE INDEPENDENT AUD

Annexure-II

R'S REPORT

(Referred to paragraph (2) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date)

Sl
No. Query Response

il Whether the Company has system in | The company has separate software
place to process all the accounting | for managing the Operations at Toll
transactions through IT System? If yes, | Plaza, named as "Comvision Toll
the implications of processing of | Management System” and
accounting transactions outside IT | Accounting Records are being
System on the integrity of the accounts | maintained under “SAP S/4 Hana
along with the financial implications, if | System” and both the software’s are
any, may be stated. not integrated.

However, there are no financial
implications of the same.

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an | There were no any restructuring of
existing loan or cases of waiver / write off | an existing loan or cases of waiver /
of debts / loans / interest etc. made by a | write-off of  debts/loans/interest
lender to the company due to the | made by a lender to the company
company’s inability to repay the loan? If | due to the company’s inability to
yes, the financial impact may be stated. | repay the loan.

Whether such cases are properly
accounted for? (In case, lender is a
Government company, then this direction
is also applicable for statutory auditor of
lender company).
3. Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) | There were no funds which have

received / receivable for specific schemes
from Central / State Government or its
agencies were properly accounted for /
utilized as per its term and conditions?
List the cases of deviation.

been received / receivable for specific
schemes from Central / State
agencies.
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Annexure - III

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

(Referred to paragraph {3(f)} under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date)

[Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)]

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s IRCON
SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
decign and operating effectiveneses of internal control baced on the ascecced rick. The

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Contd...2
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2025, “based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

Date: 02" May 2025 FORSRJN&COLLP
Place: New Delhi (Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :009063N/N500041

W

/ CA Jai Prakash Rarh

Partner

M.No.: 501283

UDIN: 25501283BMOZHD4037
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Compliance Certificate

We have conducted the audit of annual accounts of IRCON Shivpuri Guna Tollway
Limited for the year ended 315t March, 2025 in accordance with the directions/sub-
directions issued by the C & AG of India under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act,

2013 and certify that we have complied with all the Directions/Sub-directions issued to

us.
Date: 02" May 2025 FORSRJN&COLLP
Place: New Delhi (Chartered Accountants)

Reg No. :009063N/N500041

-

CA Jai Prakash Rarh
Partner
M.No.: 501283
UDIN: 25501283BMOZHD4037
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED i
(CIN- U45400DL2015GOI280017) IIE” II;F[

BALANCE SHEET as at 31st Mar 2025 (in Rs. crore)
Particulars s As at 3lst March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
1. [ASSETS
1 |Non-current assets
(@) Property, Plant and equipment 3 0.63 0.81
(b) Intangible Assets 4 489.88 535.70
() Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets B 0.19 0.16
(d) Deferred tax assets (Net) 6
(e) Other non current assets 7 - 3.00
‘I'otal Non-current assets 490.70 539.67
2 |Current assets
(@) Financial Assets 8
(1) Trade Receivables 8.1 0.50 0.71
(if) Cash and cash equivalents 8.2 60.97 115.72
(ui) Other Bank Balances 8.3 48.00 1.06
(iv) Loans 8.4 0.01 -
(v) Other Financial Assets 85 316 3.81
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 9 0.68 0.68
(¢) Other current assets 10 0.10 17.83
Total Current asscts 113.42 139.81
Total Assets 604.12 679.48 |
1. [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 1 150.00 150.00
(b) Other Equity 12 (131.61) (109.03)
Total Equity 18.39 40.97
2 |Liabilitics
(i) | Non-current liabilities
() Financial Liabilities 13
(i) Borrowings 13.1 450.52 467.17
(i1) Lease liabilities = -
(iii) Trade Payables T
- Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
- Total outstanding dues other than of Micro Enterprises and Small
Enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 13.2 0.03 0.03
(b) Provisions 14 28.24 -
Total Non-current liabilitics 478.79 467.20
(if)| Current liabilities
(4) Financial Liabilities 15
(1) Botrowings 15.1 26.48 16.40
(i1) Lease liabilities -
(iif) Trade payables 152
- Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - -
- Total l?utsrmding dues Other than of Micro Enterprises and Small 26,93 24.90
Enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 153 16.87 744
(b) Other current liabilities 16 0.98 1.24
(¢) Provisions 14 35.68 71.33
(d) Current Tax liability (Net) = o
Total Current liabilitics 106.94 171.31
Total Equity and Liabilities 604.12 679.48
111 | Summary of Material Accounting policies 1-2
IV.|Notes forming part of financial statements 3-39
As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited
ForSRJ N & Co LLP ( Masood Afmad) ( Santanu Mukherjee)
Chartered Accountants Dir Director
Firm Reg. No. : 009063N /N500041 DIN - 09108553 DIN - 10895834

NI

\C (Rachna Tomar) (Uttam Shamrao Thorat) (Pooja Gurwala)
£ Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary

(CA JayPrakash Rarh ) ¥a) /
P £ \% j

M. No. 501283

Place : New Delhi
Date : 02nd May 2025
UDIN : 25501283BMOZH14037
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
(CIN- U45400D1L2015G0O1280017)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

ilGansy

(in Rs. crore)

Paiisilise Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
I. |Revenue:
Revenue from operations 17 167.21 169.43
1. |Other income 18 6.44 6.45
111 Total Income (I + II) 173.65 175.88
IV. |Expenses:
Project Expenses 19 107.00 93.82
Employee benefits expenses 20 1.50 1.36
Finance costs 21 41.65 41.14
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 20 46.00 45.83
Other Expenses 19 0.08 0.12
Total Expenses (IV). 196.23 182.27
V. |Profit/ (Loss) Before exceptional items and Tax (III - IV) (22.58) (6.39)
VI. |Exceptional items - -
VII. |Profit/ Loss before tax (V + VI) (22.58) (6.39)
VIIL [Tax expenses:
(1) Current tax
- For the Period -
- For earlier years (net) -
(2) Deferred tax (net) 6 - -
Total Tax Expense - -
X Profit/ (Loss) for the period from continuing operation (VII - (22.59) (639
VIII)
X |Other Comprehensive Income - -
X1 |Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX +X)
(Comprising profit/(Loss) and other comprchensive income (22.58) (6.39)
for the year, net of tax)
XII |Earnings Per Equity Share:
(For Continuing Operation)
(1) Basic ( Absolute Value in INR) 30 (1.51) (0.43)
(2) Diluted ( Absolute Value in INR) 30 (1.51) (0.43)
Hace Value Per Equity Share 10.00 10.00
XI1T |Summary of Material Accounting policics 1-2
X1V [Notes forming part of financial statements 3-39

As per our Report of even date attached

For SR) N & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 009063N /IN500041

(CA Jai Prakash Rarh ) "~
Partner
M. No. 501283

M:__

Place : New Delhi (Rachna Tomar)
Date : 02nd May 2025 Chief Financial Officer
UDIN : 25501283BMOZHD4037
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(Uttam Shamrao Thorat)
Chief Executive Officer

(S

For and on behalf of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

tanu Mukherjee)
Director

DIN - 10895834

A

P~

(Pooja Gurwala)
Company Secretary



IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED 7
(CIN- U45400DL2015GOI280017) ’@”m
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025

(in Rs. crore)

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 | As at 31st March 2024

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before taxation (22.58) (6.39)

Adjustment for :

Depreciation, amortization and impairment 46.00 45.83

Finance Cost 41.65 41.14

Profit on sale of assets (net) - 0.001

Interest Income (6.35) (6.40)

QOperating Profit before Current /Non-Current Asscts and Liabilitics (0] 58.72 74.18
Adjustment for:

Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivables/ Financial Assets - Loans 0.19 (0.16)

Decrease / (Increase) in Other Assets & Financial Assets 17.73 (17.61)

(Decrease) / Tnerease in Trade Payables (6.65) 33.35

(Decrease) / Increase in Other Liabilities, Financial Liabilities & Provisions (4.24) 14.11

@ 7.03 29.69

Cash generated from operations (1+2) 65.75 103.87
Income Tax Paid (net) (0.68) (0.68)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 65.07 103.19
- CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment - (0.60)
Purchase of Intangible Assets/ Intangible assets under development (31.63) 0.10
Interest Received 6.97 3.99
Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents (46.94) (1.06)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (71.60) 2.43

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Unsecured Loan From IRCON (Holding Co.) 18.57 -
Loan From State Bank of India - -
Repayment of Loan to IRCON (Holding Co.) - -

Repayment of Loan to State Bank of India (25.14) (9.49)
Interest cost (41.59) (41.08)
Other borrowing cost (0.06) (0.06)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (48.22) (50.63)
Effect of Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Cugrency Cash &

: (D) = -
Cash Equivalents
NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH
EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C+D) (54.75) 54.99
OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (E) 115.72 60.73
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS x) 60.97 115.72
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT|  (F-E) (54.75) 54.99

Note : 1. The above Cash flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Mecthod"as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-7 on
Statement of Cash Flows.

2. Recongiliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents and Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents included in the above Standalone Statement of Cash

Flows :
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
(CIN- U45400DL2015GO1280017)

iEmmsp

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025

(in Rs. crore)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2025 | As at 31st March 2024

Cash in hand
Cheques/drafts in hand
Remittance in Transit
Balances with banks*:
— On current accounts
— Flexi Accounts

— Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months

0.06 0.05
60.91 115.67

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet and Standalone Statement of

Cash Flows

60.97 115.72

A The abore balances, pertain to ESCROW A/ €, as per concession agreement entered with NHAL

3, Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:

(in Rs. crore)

Particulars Borrowings
As at 1st April 2023 493.06
(a) Cashflows during the year (9.49)
(b) Non cash changes during the year due to: -
(¢ ) Interest Cost 41.08
Interest paid (41.08)
As at 31st March 2024 483.57
(a) Cashflows during the year - State Bank of India Loan (25.14)
(b) Cashflows during the year - Holding Company Loan 18.57
(¢) Non cash changes during the year due to : 5
(d ) Interest Cost 41.59
Interest paid (41.59)
As at 31st March 2025 477.00

4. Figures in brackets represent outflow of cash.

5. Figures of the previous year have been regrouped / recasted wherever necessary.

As per our Report of even date attached

For SR N & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 009063N /N500041

e

(CA Jai Prakash Rarh)

Partner - _ -
M. No. 501283

Place : New Delhi

UDIN : 25501283BMOZHD4037

For and on behalf of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

( Santanu Mukherjee)
] Director
- DIN - 10895834

(Rachna Tomar) (Uttam Shamrao Thorat) (Pooja Gurwala)
Date : 02nd May 2025 Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
(CIN- U45400DL2015G01280017)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025

A. Equity Share Capital
For the year ended 31st March 2025

HEansg

(in Rs. crore)

Bal i Change in Equity | Restated balance
Parti be e :f i € | Share Capital due |at the beginning of| Changes in equity | Balance as at 3ist
¢ gA il 205 24 bl prior period the current during the year March 2025
P errors reporting period
Equity Shares (in Numbers) 15,00,00,000 - 15,00,00,000 - 15,00,00,000
Amount 150.00 - 150.00 - 150.00
For the vear ended 31st March 2024 (in Rs. crore)
Change in Equity | Restated balance
s l‘::la'nc? as:;.;:e Share Capital due |at the beginning of| Changes in equity | Balance as at 31st
gA"““"gﬂl e % | to prior period the current during the year March, 2024
£ errors reporting period
Equity Shares (in Numbers) 15,00,00,000 - 15,00,00,000 - 15,00,00,000!
Amount 150.00 - 150.00 - 150.00
B. Other Equity
For the year 1st March 2025 (in Rs. crore)
Hescrves & Stutolos Other Comprehensive
o Income
Particulars Capital Exchange]diﬂcrence Total
7 ¥ f on translating the
General Reserves | Retained Earnings Re;emptmn RIS
ESCIve foreign operation
Balance as at 1 April, 2024 - (109.03) - - (109.03)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - - -
Balance as at 1 April, 2024 (Restated) - (109.03) - - (109.03)
Profit/(Loss) for the year - (22.58) - - (22.58)
Other Comprehensive Income -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period - (22.58) - - (22.58)
Balance as at March 31st , 2025 - (131.61) - - (131.61)
For the year ended 31st March 2024 (in Rs. crore)
Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive
Income
Particulars Capital Exchange differences Total
General Reserves | Retained Earnings Redemption i o l..te;nslnung ol
Reiiris nancial statement of a
% forcign operation
Balance as at 1 April, 2023 - (102.64) - - (102.64)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - A 5
Balance as at 1 April, 2023 (Restated) - (102.64) - - (102.64
Profit/(Loss) for the year - (6.39) - - (6.39)
Other Comprehensive Income -
'Total Comprehensive Income for the period - (6.39) - - (6.39
Balance as at March 31st, 2024 - (109.03) - - (109.03)

As per our Report of even date attached

ForSR] N & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 009063N /N500041

R oy

sh Rarh )
Partner
M. No. 501283
Place : New Delhi
Date : 02nd May 2025
UDIN : 25501283BMOZHDA4037

For and on behalf of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

( Masood 3 d) |
Drrectpr
DIN - 09008553

(Rachna Tomar)
Chief Financial Officer
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(Pooja Gurwala)
Company Secretary




IRCON Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March,2025

1.

2.1.

2.2,

Corporate Information

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited
domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of companies Act 2013 applicable in India.
The company came into existence when, Ircon International Limited has been awarded the work of
‘Four Laning of Shivpuri — Guna Section of NH-3 from km 236.000 to km 332.100 (Stage — 1) in the
state of Madhya Pradesh on DBFOT basis in accordance with the terms and conditions in the
concession agreement by National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). In pursuance the provisions
of ‘Request for Proposal’, the selected bidder ‘Ircon International Limited’ has formed a Special
Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (IrconSGTL) as wholly owned
subsidiary and incorporated under Companies Act, 2013 on 12th May 2015. Accordingly, SPV has
signed the Concession Agreement with NHAI on 15th June 2015. The concession period of 20 years
commenced on 25th Jan 2016 i.e. Appointed Date notified by the National Highway Authority of India.
The registered office of the company located at C-4, District Centre, Saket, and New Delhi - 110017.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors in their meeting
held on o2 May 2025.

Material Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements
i) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on going concern basis following accrual
system of accounting and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from
time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013,
(Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statements.

ii) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

¢ Provisions, where the effect of time value of money is material are measured at present value
e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

iii) Functional and Presentation Currency

These Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest crores upto two decimals except for per share
data, unless otherwise stated.

Summary of material accounting policies

A summary of the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are
as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.
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IRCON Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March,2025

2.2.1.

2.2.3.

Current and non-current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
and cash equivalents, the Company has determined twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose
of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current in the balance sheet.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at cost.
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes:

(a)its purchase price, net of any trade discount and rebates including non-refundable purchase taxes,
after deducting trade discounts and rebates;

(b)any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as specified under part C of schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013 and disclosed
in the notes to accounts. The residual values is not more than 5% of the original cost of assets.

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of part is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that part is different from the useful
life of remaining asset.

Property, plant and equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to Rs. 5000/-are fully
depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification. However, Mobile phones provided to
employees are charged to statement of profit and loss irrespective of its value.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in statement of profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

Intangible assets

Toll Collection Right (Toll Road Service Concession Arrangement)

"Toll collection rights obtained in consideration for rendering construction or upgradation services in
a service concession arrangement (SCA), represent the right to collect toll revenue during the
concession period in respect of Build-Operate-Transfer ("BOT") project undertaken by the Company.

Toll collection rights on initial recognition are measured at cost (which is the fair value of the
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IRCON Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March,2025

2.2.5.

consideration received for the construction services delivered).

Toll collection rights are capitalized as intangible assets upon completion of the project in all respects
and when the company receives the completion certificate (Provisional or Final) from the authority as
specified in the Concession Agreement at the cumulative construction costs. Till the completion of the
project, the same is recognised under intangible assets under development.

Subsequently, the toll collection rights are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service concession arrangement is the period from
where the company is able to charge the public for use of infrastructure to the end of the concession
period.

Toll collection rights are amortized using straight line method on pro-rata basis from the date of
addition or from the date when the right brought in to service to the expiry of concession period.

Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end.

The carrying value of intangible asset is reviewed for impairment annually or more often by external
valuers if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in statement of profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from the Service Concession Arrangement comprising the
construction, operation & maintenance services pertaining to a infrastructure (Road) under a Built
Operate and Transfer (BOT) model.

i) Revenue from Service Concession Arrangement (Toll Collection)

As the Company involved in construction and maintenance of Roads, revenue are recognized in line
with the Appendix C to Ind AS 115 — Service Concession Arrangements. Toll collection is recognized in
the period of collection of toll / user fee which coincides with the usage of the infrastructure (Road)
i.e. at point of time.
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IRCON Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March,2025

2.2.6.

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract
work to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably. The
Company recognizes toll revenue as and when it collects at Transaction Price i.e usage fee.

Contract balances

Contract assets: If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. The portion of the payments retained by the customer until final
contract settlement is not considered a significant financing component since it is usually intended to
provide customer with a form of security for Company’s remaining performance as specified under the
contract, which is consistent with the industry practice.

Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that
is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).
Trade receivable are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant
financing components. The Company hold the trade receivable with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measure them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less loss allowance.

ii) Other income
o Interest income is recognised using Effective Interest rate method.
o All other income is accounted on accrual basis when no significant uncertainty exists regarding
the amount that will be received.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds and are charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are
incurred except when it meets the criteria for capitalization as part of qualifying assets as per Ind AS

23.
Employee Benefit
i) Short Term Employee Benefits

Employee benefits such as

salaries and wages, short term compensated absences, and Performance Related Pay (PRP) falling due
wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits
and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement of profit and loss in in the
period in which the employee renders the related services.

ii) Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits

The employees of the Company are on deputation from Ircon International Limited, Holding
Company. The post employee benefits & other long term employee benefits includes gratuity,
provident fund, post- retirement medical facility, pension, leave encashment and leave travel
concession.

/
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IRCON Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March,2025

As per arrangement with the Ircon International Limited, Holding Company, the cost in relation to
post employee benefits & other long term Employee benefits will be reimbursed to the holding
Company on the basis of fixed contribution based on basic pay and dearness allowance for the period
of services rendered in the Company.

The company’s liability with respect to the long-term employee benefit is limited to the extent of fixed
contribution to be paid to the holding company. Actual settlement of the long-term employee liability
will be the responsibility of holding company.

The Contractual employees of the Company are not eligible for post employee benefits & other long
term employee benefits.

2.2.8. Taxes
Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred income tax.
i) Current income Tax

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period and is
computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Current income tax is recognised in statement of profit and loss. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided for temporary taxable/deductible difference arising on the difference of tax
base and accounting base of assets/liabilities using the liability method and are measured at the
enacted tax rates or substantively enacted tax rates at reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

2.2.9. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
unrestricted cash and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months and less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. e

GUNA PR
oL20 75 ‘:: :
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IRCON Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March,2025

2.2.10. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions recognised by the Company include provisions for major maintenance and others.

Major Maintenance Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. The discount rate used to determine
the present valueis a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

This provision are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
ii) Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that may
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of
such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no
provision or disclosure is made. Contingent liabilities has been disclosed as a part of notes to account.

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
iii) Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

2.2.11. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for
consideration.

i) Company as a lessee
a) Short Term leases
The company has elected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a

lease term of twelve months or less and leases of low value assets. The company recognise lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.2.12. Financial instruments

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the

s 0%
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IRCON Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March,2025

contractual provisions of the instrument.

i. Financial assets

a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets (excluding trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing
component, being measured at transaction price) are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in statement of profit and loss.

b) Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial asset depends on the Company business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its financial asset as:

Financial assets at amortised cost

After initial measurement, the financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for recognising impairment loss on
financial assets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables, and other contractual rights to receive
cash or other financial asset.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company follows 'simplified approach' and measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition.
If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as expense/
income in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘Project expenses’
in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for financial assets measured at
amortised cost is described below:

ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria,
the company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

c) Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset, and the transfer qualifies for derecognition
under Ind AS 100.

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received / receivable is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March,2025

ii Financial liabilities

a) Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial
liabilities.

b) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After initial recognition, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR (Effective Interest Rate) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss.

¢) Derecognition of financial liabilities :
A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

2.2.13. Fair value measurement

2.2.14.

2.2.15.

The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured, are disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the level 3 (Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is unobservable) of fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

Earnings Per Share

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period.

In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all

dilutive potential equity shares.
Prior Period Adjustment

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and
adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50%
of total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company.
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2.2.16. Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of Financial Statements requires the management to make judgements, accounting
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
labilities, and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning
out to be different than those originally assessed.

Significant areas of estimation and judgements as stated in the respective accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the financial statements are as follows:

i. Allowances for uncollected trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivable’s balances and
historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems not be
collectible.

ii. Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims
against the company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on all
available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably and such
obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can be no
assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the company is involved. it is not expected
that such contingencies will have material effect on its financial position of probability.

iii. Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation., based on the company’s past history, credit risk, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

iv. Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws,
and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences arising
between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could
necessitate future adjustments that will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made. The company establishes provisions,
based on reasonable estimates.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

v. Impairment of non-financial assets
The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
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Determining the recoverable amount of the assets is judgmental and involves the use of significant
estimates and assumptions. The estimates are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable, but
which are inherently uncertain and unpredictable and do not reflect unanticipated events and

circumstances that may occur.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

3 Property, Plant and Equipment (in Rs. crore)
Plant & Office Furniture & ;
Mechitess Computers Eqiiphets s Vehicles Total
Gross Carrying Amount (At Cost)
At 31 March 2023 0.06 0.11 0.04 0.03 0.71 0.95
Additions 0.60 . - 0.60
Disposals/Adjustments - - (0.02) - - (0.02)
Exchange (Gain) / Loss - - - o = <
At 31 March 2024 0.66 0.11 0.02 0.03 0.71 1.53
At 1 April 2024 0.66 0.11 0.02 0.03 0.71 1.53
Additions - 0.002 - 0.001 - 0.003
Disposals/Adjustments - - - - - -
& Exchange (Gain) / Loss - - - - - -
At 31st March 2025 0.660 0.112 0.02 0.031 0.71 1.53
Depreciation and impairment '
At 31 March 2023 0.034 0.10 0.031 0.009 0.40 0.58
N S Depreciation charge for the year 0.069 - 0.006 0.004 0.08 0.16
Impairment - - - - - -
Disposals/ Adjustments - - (0.02) - - (0.02)
Exchange (Gain) / Loss - - - - - -
At 31 March 2024 0.103 0.10 0.020 0.013 0.48 0.72
At 1 April 2024 0.103 0.10 0.020 0.013 0.48 0.72
Depreciation charge for the year 0.087 - - 0.006 0.08 0.18
Impairment - - - - - -
Disposals/ Adjustments - - - - - -
Exchange (Gain) / Loss - - - - - -
At 31st March 2025 0.190 0.10 0.02 0.019 0.57 0.90
Net book value
At 31st March 2025 0.47 0.012 - 0.012 0.14 0.63
At 31 March 2024 0.557 0.010 - 0.017 0.23 0.81
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Foot Notes:-
i) Depreciation and impairment on Property, Plant & Equipment for the year debited to Statement of Profit and Loss

\ ' are as follows:-

For the year For the year

Description ended 31st March| ended 31st
2025 March 2024
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 0.18 0.16

%0 ||| Impairment Loss - -

Total 0.18 0.16

(ii) Depreciation is provided based on useful life considering business specific usage, the consumption pattern of the
assets and the past performance of similar assets.

Estimated useful life of assets are as follows:

U :
sziuilxl:es Useful life
; i
‘ Class of Assets Schedule IT adoitetd i
& (in Years) yeaes)
> As per revised
Plant and Machinery 8 schedule II
As per revised
Computers 3 schedule 11
T ’ 3 As per revised
Office Equipment’s & schedule II
Furniture and fixtures 10 sl sl
schedule TI
; As per revised
Vehicles 8 schedule II
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Intangible Assets (in Rs. Crore)

Intangible  Intangible Asset Other
Particulars assets under (Toll Road) Intangibles
development  (Refer Note 25) (Software)

Gross Block

Opening balance at 1 April 2023 7.81 771.91 -
Addition during the year 2.86 10.67 -
Capitalisation during the year 10.67 - -
Disposals / adjustment during the year - - -
Closing balance at 31 March 2024 - 782.58 -

Addition duting the year - - -

Capitalisation during the year - -

Closing balance at 31st March 2025 - 782.58 -

Amortisation and Impairment

Closing balance at 31 March 2023 201.21 -
Amortisation during the year 45.67 -
Sales / adjustment during the year - -
Closing balance at 31 March 2024 - 246.88 -
Amortisation during the year 45.82 -

Sales / adjustment during the year -

Closing balance at 31st Match 2025 292.70 -
Net book value

At 31st March 2025 - 489.88 -
At 31 March 2024 - 535.70 -

Intangible assets under development (0 R Crore)

Particulars Lass than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years Mone than = Total

year years
As at 31st March 2025
Projects in progress - - - - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

As at 31st March 2024
Projects in progress - - = 2 7
Projects temporarily suspended - - - = g

Completion was not overdue for the above project.
——
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Non-Current Assets - Other Financial Assets (in Rs. Crore)
Baticular As at 3l1st As at 3lst
aEeman March 2025  March 2024
a) Considered Good : Unsecured
Security Deposits
- Others 0.19 0.16
Total - Other Financial Assets 0.19 0.16

b) Considered Doubtful

Total - Other Financial Assets - Doubtful - -

Grand Total - Other Financial Assets 0.19 0.16

N
$F
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

6 Deferred Tax Assets and Income Tax
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes”

\ (a) The major components ofincome tax expense for the year ended 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024 ase :

HEDmsge

(in Rs. Crore)

For the year ended

S.No. |Particulars

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

1 Profit and Loss Section

Current income tax :

Current income tax charge

Adjustment in respect of current tax of previous year
Deferred tax :

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

Income tax expense reported in the Profit and Loss section

2 |Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section
Income tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

Income tax expense reported in the OCI section

h (b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the period ended 31st March 2
P ZP P ¥ P

025 and 31st March 20z (in Rs. Crore)

S.No. |Particulars

For the year ended

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

1 |Accounting profit before income tax

2 Corporate tax rate a5 per Income tax Act, 1961

3 |Tax on Accounting profit (3) = (1) * (2)
4  |Effect of 'T'ax Adjustments:

() |Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years
() |Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses

(i)  |Impact of Rate Difference

(iv) |Tax on Income exempt from tax

(v)  |Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes:

-Other non-deductible cxpenses

) |Tax effect of various other items

(22.58)
25.168%

(6.40)
25.168%

Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Liffective "I'ax Rate
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

6 Deferred Tax Assets and Income Tax

(c) Components of deferred tax assets and (liabilities) recognised in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit or Loss

HEamsp

Balance sheet as at Statement of profit or loss for the period
ended
S.No. |Particulars
. N 31stMarch 2025 | 31stMarch2024 | 3lstMarch2025 | 3istMarch 2024
1 Erupcr.ry,l Plant & Fquipment (i.nciufiii}g ixltfngiblc): Difference in book (92.42) (93.69) (127 290
epreciation and income tax depreciation
2 |-Provisions 16.09 16.93 0.84 (2.20)
3 Others™"” 76.33 76.76 0.43 -
Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) - . = <

A Deferred Tax Assds arising on account of Business losses and PPE bas been restricted to the Deferred Tax Liability arising from Provisions as a matter of conservatisne. Deferred Tax: asset of Rs 14.76

Crores has not been reagnised as a matter of prudence, in line with Accounting policy 2.2.8

(d) Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:

(in Rs. Crore)

S.No. |Particulars
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
1 |Deferred tax assets 92.43 93.69
2 |Deferred tax liability (92.43) (93.69)
%\ Deferred ‘Tax Asset/(Liabilities) (Net) - :
Note: Deferred tax assetsand deferred tax liabilitics have been offset as they relate to the same governing laws.
(e) Reconciliation of deferred tax (liabilities) / assets:
As at 31st March 2025 (in Rs. Crore)
Recognised in Net balance
W S.No. |Particulars Netbalance | o 8t rofit | Recognisedin OCI | As at 315t March
As at 1st April 2024
and loss 2025
Property, Plant & Equipment (including intangible): Difference in book
1 |depreciation and income tax depreciation (93.69) (1.27) - (92.42)
2 Provisions 16.93 0.84 = 16.09
3 Others 76.76 0.43 - 76.33
Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) - £ = .
As at 31st March 2024 (in Rs. Crore)
Recognised in
S.No. |Particulars As I:I“:lts:;):;::;ﬂﬂ statement of profit | Recognised in OCI As :‘:1::;?[::‘;02 4
and loss
) Prl)pcr}%y,.l’iant & liquipment (i.nclu'dit_)g intangible): Difference in book (91.49) 220 I 93.69)
depreciation and income tax depreciation
2 Provisions 14.73 (2.20) - 16.93
3 Others 76.76 - 76.76

Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)
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Heansge

(in Rs. Crore)

Pasticul As at 3lst As at 31st
RS March 2025  March 2024

Other Non-Cuttrent Assets

a) Capital Advances

Capital Advance for Creation of Intangible Asset " 3.00
(Stage II of Toll Road) i

Total - Capital Advances 2 3.00
Considered Good : Unsecured - 3.00
Total ‘ - 3.00
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

8.1 Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables

(in Rs. Crore)

HCanmsge

Particulas As at 31st As at 3lst
March 2025 March 2024
Unsecured considered good (Refer Note 34C) 0.50 0.82
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Credit Impaired :
Unsecured, considered good - 0.11)
Considered Doubtful
- Trade receivables s .
Less : Impairment allowances for deubtful debts = :
Total 0.50 0.71
@ Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule
| Outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2025 from the due date e
YA of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not Due paymen
Less than 6 | 6 months - 1avears | 2:3vears More than 3 (Rs. in Crore
months 1 year ¥ ¥ years 2 )
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good - - 0.50 - - - 0.50
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables— which have significant increase in credit : g . { B 1 A .
risk
(iiiy Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - - -
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables —credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total - - 0.50 - - - - 0.50
Less :Impairment Allowances - - - 5 = 5 = "
Net Trade Receivables - - 0.50 - - - - 0.50
Outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2024 from the due date
P t Total
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Bl
Less than 6 | 6 months - More than 3 .
1-2 years | 2-3 years (Rs. in Crore)
months 1 year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good - - 0.71 - - 0.06 0.05 0.82
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit g k It _ ? i Y 5
risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - - -
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Total - - 0.71 - - 0.06 0.05 0.82
Less : Impairment Allowances - - - - - (0.06) (0.05) (0.11)
Net Trade Receivables - - 0.71 - - - - 0.71
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8.3

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash equivalents

Cansge

(in Rs. Crore)

Particdl As at 3lst As at 3lst
arpeHat March 2025  March 2024
Cash on hand = =
Balances with banks:™
— On current accounts 0.06 0.05
— Flexi Accounts* 60.91 115.67
— Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months - -
60.97 115.72

~ The above balances, pertain to ESCROW A/ C , as per concession agreement entered with NHAL

Cutrent Financial Assets - Other Bank Balances

(in Rs. Crore)

Sardical As at 31st As at 3lst
S March 2025 March 2024
Other Bank Balances
— Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than or 0.27 £
equal to 12 months '
Earmarked Balances :
- Lien on account of penalty imposed by National Highway Authority of 1.06 1.06
India ( Refer Note 32 ( ii)) g :
— Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than or 46.67 -
equal to 12 months*
48.00 1.06

*Rs 46.67 Crores was earmarked for Major maintenance reserve account (available for use for major maintenance work) in FY
2023-2024 under Flexi account (note 8.2 above), the same has now been transferred to Deposits ( nole 8.3 above) in FY 2024 -23.
As on 31t March 2025, Rs. Nil is earmarked under Flexi account (note 8.2 above) and Rs. 46.67 cr. is earmarked under
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8.5

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Current Financial Assets - Loans

(in Rs. Crore)

Parsticulars

As at 31st March
2025

As at 31st March
2024

A. Considered Good : Secured
Staff Loans and Advances

Total (A) - Considered Good : Secured

B. Unsecured, considered good

(i) Loans to Related Parties:
(ii) Others:
Staff Loans & Advances

0.01

Total (B) - Considered Good : Unsecured

0.01

Grand Total

0.01

Loans or advances in the nature of Loans granted to related parties :

ieansge

Type of Borrower

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

Amount of loan or
advance in the
nature of loan
outstanding *

% of total loans and
advances in the
nature of loans

Amount of loan or
advance in the
nature of loan
outstanding ¥

% of total loans and
advances in the
nature of loans *

Loan to Promoters
Loan to Directors

Loan to KMPs 0.01 100.00% -
Loan to related parties
Total 0.01 100.00% - =

*sepresents loan or advance in the nature of loan

~ represents percentage to the total loans and advances in the nature of loans.

Current Assets - Other Financial Asscts

(in Rs. Crore)

Particulars

As at 31st March
2025

As at 31st March
2024

A.Un wred, consi d d
Interest Accrued on :
- Advance to Staff
- Deposits with Banks/Flexi Deposit/Fixed Deposits
Others:
Other Recoverable

3.16

3.80

0.01

Total - Other Financial Asscts - Good

3.16

3.81

B) Considered Doubtful
Sccurity Deposits
- Government Departments
- Others
Interest Accrued on Advances to Staff
Earnest Money Deposit
- Retention Money with client
- Money Withheld by Client
Others
Less : Impairment allowance for doubtful financial assets
(others)

Total - Other Financial Assets - Doubtful

Grand Total - Other Financial Others

3.16

3.81

; Details of amount due from Directors:

(in Rs. Crore)

Particulars

As at 31st March
2025

As at 31st March
2024

Amount due from directors included in interest accrued on
staff loans and advances

Total
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Current Assets - Current Tax Assets (Net) (in Rs. Crore)

Pk oot As at 31st March As at 31st March
S 2025 2024

Taxes Paid including TDS & Advance Tax (Net of Provision

for Tax) 0.68 0.68

Current tax Assets (Net) 0.68 0.68
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Other Current Assets (in Rs. Crore)

Paﬂicularg AS at 31st As at 31st MaICh
March 2025 2024

Considered Good : Unsecured

a) Advances Other than Capital Advances

Advances to Contractors- Related Party- Holding Company - 17.70

- Goods & Services Tax - 0.03
Prepaid Expenses 0.10 0.10
Total - Others 0.10 17.83

b) Considered Doubtful

Less: Impairment allowance for doubtful advances - -

Total - Considered Doubtful - -

Grand Total 0.10 17.83
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Equity Share capital

HEansg

(in Rs. crore)

g As at 3lst As at 3lst
Baiunytes March 2025 March 2024
Authorised share capital
15,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each
( 15,00,00,000 Equity shaes of Rs.10 each as at 31st 150.00 150.00
March 2024)
150.00 150.00
Issued /Subscribed and Paid up Capital
15,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each-fully paid
(15,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each-fully paid asat 150.00 150.00
31st March 2024)
150.00 150.00
Promoter’s shareholding
Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period / year % change
9 | during the
FAfticias S.No Promoter Name No. of shares /"s:fa:z? peri od?' year
Ircon International Limited- Holding
As at 31st March 2025 1 Company ( IRCON) 15,00,00,000 100.00% NA
Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period / year % change
Particulars 9 during the
S.No Promoter Name No. of shares /"s:fa::t:l period?f year
Ircon Intemational Limited- Holding .
As at 31st March 2024 1 Company ( IRCON) 15,00,00,000 100.00% NA

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

g No. of Share % holding in the class No. of Share T uaing i:l;];:
Trcon International Limited- Holding 15,00,00,000 100.00% 15,00,00,000 100.00%
Company ( IRCON)

il ha Ider Iding in thi mpa;
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Name of the shareholder e A ho‘:::fs ithe S o m‘ii:i e
Trcon International Limited- Holding Company ( IRCON) 15,00,00,000 100.00 15,00,00,000 100.00
Total 15,00,00,000 100.00 15,00,00,000 100.00

Aggregate no. of equity shares issucd as b , shares i d for co

years immediately preceding the reporting date

tion other than cash and sharcs bought back during the period of five

As at 3lst As at 31 March Asat 31 March  As at 31 March As at 31
Marchoeas, \pot dsrMacch 2024 2023 2022 2021 March 2020
No. of Share No. of Share No. of Share No. of Share  No. of Share

No. of Share

Equity shares allotted other than cash
Equity shares issued as bonus shares - - 5 -
Equity shares Buy Back - = = i

Total - - - -

Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares :
(a) Voting

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a pac value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shae is entitled to one vote per share.

(b) Liguidation

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all

preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

5 As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Particulars - -
No of shares Rs in crore No of shares | Rs in crore
Tssued/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital outstanding at the beginning of the year 15,00,00,000 150.00 15,00,00,000 150.00
Add: Shares Tssued during the year . & ) "
Less: Shares Buy Back during the year - - 2 R
Tssued/ Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital outstanding at the end of the year 15,00,00,000 150.00 15,00,00,000 150.00

%
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Gy

(in Rs. Crore)

Other Equity
Pt Asat 31st  Asat 31st March
el Masch 2025 2024

Retained Earnings (131.61) (109.03)
Total (131.61) (109.03)
Movement as per below:

Retained Earnings

Opening Balance (109.03) (102.64)
Add: Transfer from surplus in statement of profit and loss (22.58) (6.39)
Closing Balance (131.61) (109.03)
Grand Total (131.61) (109.03)

Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves:

Retained Earnings
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13.1

@

(b)

13.2

TRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

-
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 ,’”””iﬂl

Non-Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities

Non-Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (in Rs. Crore)

: As at 3lst As at 31st
Diiytenln March 2025 March 2024
Secured:

(2) Loan from State Bank of India Refer note (a) below and note 15.1) 431.95 467.17
Unsecured :

(b) Loan from Holding Company(Ircon International Limited) (Refer note (b) below ) 18.57 -
Total 450,52 467.17
Notes :

Terms & Conditions of Loan from State Bank of India
i) A Term Loan from State Bank of India was taken in March 2022 by Loan agreement dated 17th February 2022 for Rs 501 crores. The break up of
Non current and current borrowings classification is given below :

As at 31st | As at 31st March

Feniaian March 2025 2024

Loan from State Bank of India ( Refer note (ii) and (iii) ) below : 458.43 483.57
Tess : Current Maturitics (Amount ze- payable in next financial year ) Shown under - current Financial Liabilities- 26.48 16.40
borrowings Note 15.1

Amount Shown under Non-Current Financial Liabilities-Borrowings 431.95 467.17

ii) Interest Terms

The Applicable Interest rate is base rate of SBI 3 month MCLR plus spread of 0.25% w.e.f 28.03.2022.

iii) Terms of Repayment

Term Loan shall be repaid in 11.5 years upto 30.09.2033, in quarterly instalments as per the schedule mentioned in the Loan agreement.

As per clause 12 of the Loan agreement, the securities for the Loan extended are mentioned in brief as under :
(1) first charge on all the Borrower’s tangible movable assets pertaining to the Project;
(2) a figst charge over all accounts of the Borrower pertaining to the Project including the Escrow Accounts and the sub-accounts (or any account in
substitution thereof) or any other bank account that may be opened in accordance with this Agreement ;
(3) a first charge on all intangibles assets pertaining to the Project including but not limited to goodwill, rights, undertaking and uncalled capital present
and future ;
(4) Assignment/Charge by way of Security in the following, both present and future:

(i) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in the Project Documents;

(ii) the right, title and interest of the Borrower in, to and under all the Clearances;

(iif) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in any letter of credit, guarantee including contractor

guarantees and liquidated damages and  performance bond provided by any party to the Borrower pursuant to the Project Documents;

(iv) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower under all Insurance Contracts pertaining to the Project;
(5) An unconditional corporate guarantee by the promoter in favour of the Security trustee and an irrevocable and unconditional undertaking from the
Promoter , to cover any shortfall in the loan and other conditions as mentioned in the Loan agreement dated 17.02.2022
(6) The Company is not at default of either repayment of the loan or interest payment on the loans as on the Balance Sheet Date.

Terms & Conditions of Loan from Holding Company

(i) The Company has availed an Unsecured Loan from its Holding Company , IRCON International Limited as per original agreement dated 9th
September 2022 and suplementary agreement dated 19-07-2024. The Loan is in the nature of subordinate debt to the Company. The break up of Non
current and current borrowings classification is given below :

3 As at 3lst As at 31st March
Bty March 2025 2024

Unsecured Loan from Holding Company ( refer note (if) below) : 18.57

Tess  Cusrent Maturities (Amount re- payable in next financial year ) Shown under - current Financial Liabilities-

borrowings Note 15.1

Amount Shown under Non-Current Financial Liabilities-Borrowings 18.57 -

i) Salient terms and conditions of the loan are as under

1) The duration of the disbursement would be a period of 3 years from the date of signing of the suplementary agreement dated 19-07-2024.

Z) 'The total sanctoned amount of the lvan is Re 35 aoree.

3) 'The interest rate of this loan is prevailing SBI 3 month MCLR plus spread of 0.25% w.e.f first disbursement of the loan.

4) All accrued and unpaid interest on the loan and all other amounts accrued under this agreement shall be due and payable as per "Waterfall Mechanism"
as agreed under Financing documents executed between the Company and State Bank of India ( Senior Lender) for the term loan of Rs 501 erores as
agreed and whose salient features are mentioned at 13.1(a) above.

5) This unsecured loan shall be due and payable in 2.5 years commencing after 12 years from COD for Stage -1 of the Shivpuri Guna Project or
repayment of full term loan of Senior Lender whichever is earlier, in structured half yearly instalments.

Other Financial Liability
(in Rs, crore)

Z As at 3lst As at 3lst
1
Bachomlans March 2025 March 2024
Deposits and Retention money 0.03 0.03
Total 0.03 0.03

£ %
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14 Provisions

HComspe

(in Rs. crore)

o T As at 31st  As at 31st March
AL gor o= Matrch 2025 2024
Provision for scheduled major maintenance 141 3568 71.33
of Toll Road
35.68 71.33
Cutrent 35.68 71.33
28.24

Non Current

The disclosure of provisions movement as required under the requirements of Ind AS 37 is as

follows :

14.1 Other Provisions :

(in Rs. crore)

Particulars Maintenance Total
As at 01-April-2024 71.33 - 71.33
Cutrent 71.33 = 71.33
Non Cutrrent = - -
Provision made during the year for
scheduled major maintenance”™” 70.36 - 70.36
Less: Utilization during the year 1T - 10T
Less: Write Back during the year - 5 =
Unwinding of discount 1 = P
As at 31st March 2025 63.92 - 63.92
Current 35.68 - 35.68
Non Current 28.24 = 28.24

AN

The Company has a contractual obligation to maintain , replace or restore infrastructure , except for any enhancement
element. Cost of such obligation is measnred at the best estimate of the excpenditure required to settle the obligation at
the balance sheet date and recogised over the period at the end of which overlay is estimated 1o be carried out. The
estimale for major mainfenance is done by the Management and is reviewed from lime lo lime based on updated data

and reports available from the Toll Road Site.
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities

Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

HHTTLIITE Gt

(in Rs. Crore)

Particulars

As at 31st As at 3lst
March 2025 March 2024

Current Maturity of Long term Borrowings ( Refer note no. 13.1)
Total

Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables

26.48 16.40

26.48 16.40

(in Rs. Crore)

Particulars

As at 3lst As at 3lst
March 2025 March 2024

Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises

Other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
(a) Contractor & Suppliers
{b) Related Parties

Total

Notes:

a) Disclosures as required under Companies Act, 2013 / Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 (MSMLD) are provided in Note 36.

b) Terms and Conditions and other halances with related partics are disclosed in Note 24.

Trade payables Ageing Schedule

4.90 6.69
22.03 68.21
26.93 74.90

in Rs. Crore)

Outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2025 Total
: Y from the due date of payment e
Particulars Unbilled | Not due
Less than 2-3 More than 3
1-2 years
1 year years years
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 11.60 # 15.33 - 26.93
Disputed dues of micro enferprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
(in Rs. Crore)
Outstanding for the year ended Mar 31, 2024 Total
. . from the due date of payment
I nbilled | Not due
Eaciieumne st Less than 2-3 More than 3
1-2 years
1 year years years

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 17.30 - 25.73 255 6.37 - 74.90
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - =
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - -

74




16.3

16

/11174

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Current Liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities (in Rs. crore)

As at 31st March As at 31st March

Particulars 2025 2024
Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld - 1.87 1.96
Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld- Related 12.88 341
Party - Holding Company ' ’
Amount Payable to Client 2.00 1.96
Other Payables (including Staff Payable) 0.04 0.04
Other Payables - Related Party - Holding Company 0.08 0.07
Total 16.87 7.44
Other Current Liabilities (in Rs. crore)

: As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2025 2024

a) Contract Liability

b) Others

Statutory dues 0.98 1.24
Total 0.98 1.24

Notes:

a) Statutory dues includes liability for Goods and Services Tax (GST), TDS, Provident Fund and
other statutory dues.
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

HEomspe

(in Rs. crores)

Revenue from operations
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2025 March 2024
Construction Contract revenue - 2.86
Revenue from Toll Operations (Refer Note 25 & 34) 166.77 166.16
- Other Operating Revenue 0.44 0.41
Total 167.21 169.43
Other Income (in Rs. crores)
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2025 March 2024
Interest Income :
Interest on refund of income-tax 0.03 0.01
Interest on other advances/Security Deposits 0.01 0.01
Bank Interest Gross 6.31 6.38
- 6.31 - 6.38
Others :
Miscellaneous Income 0.09 0.05
Total 6.44 6.45
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19 Project and Other Expenses

Hzomsge

(in Rs. crores)

77

Project Expenses Other Expenses
Particulars For the yearended | For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
T Work Expenses ( For Major Maintenance) 77.77 48.52 - =
Concession fees to NHAI 27.06 25.77
Toll operation and maintenance expenses 6.68 10.60 - -
Inspection, Geo Technical Investigation & Survey Exp. Etc. 0.72 0.79 - -
Rent/ Lease expenses - Non-residential ( refer note 35) 0.05 0.05 - -
- Office and Others 0.06 0.10 - -
Power, Electricity and Water charges 1.24 1.18 - -
Insurance 0.74 0.74 - -
Travelling & conveyance 0.01 0.03 - -
Printing & stationery - 0.01 - -
Legal & Professional charges 0.08 0.17 - -
Write-off of :
- Bad debts 0.10 - - -
- Bad assets - 0.01 - -
U} Loss on sale of Assets/Stores - - - 0.001
Auditors remuneration (Refer Note Below) - - 0.03 0.03
Advertisement & publicity - - 0.01 0.03
Bank Charges and Other financial charges - - 0.04 0.06
@ Miscellaneous expenses 0.02 0.02 - -
Provisions (Addition - Write Back)
(Refer Note 14)- For Major repair and maintenance A ) i b
Provisions Utilised (77.88) (45.65) - -
Total 107.00 93.82 0.08 0.12
() Payment to Statutory Auditors:
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(a) Audit Fee - current year 0.02 0.02
(b) Tax Audit Fees - current year 0.006 0.006
(c) Fee for quarterly limited review 0.005 0.005
(c) Certification Fees - 0.001
(d) Travelling & out of pocket expenses: - -
- Travelling Expenses - -
- Out of Pocket Expenses = 2
Total 0.03 0.03
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Employee Remuneration and Benefits (Refer Note 28)

HEDmsge

(in Rs. crore)

For the year ended 31st March 2025

For the year ended 31st March 2024

Particulars % L
er s er
Operating (Administrative) Total Operating (Administrative) Total
Salzies, wages and bonus 1 e 1 0.15 1.26 0.98 0.15 1.13
Confribution to provident and other funds 0.08 - 0.08 0.07 - 0.07
Retiement Benefits 0.16 - 0.16 0.16 - 0.16
Total 1.35 0.15 1.50 1.21 0.15 1.36
Finance Cost (in Rs. crore)
) For the year ended 31st March For the year ended 31st
Farfefias 2025 March 2024

Interest Expense - 41.59 - 41.08
Other Borrowing Cost

- Other Charges pertaining to borrowings 0.06 0.06
Unvinding of discount on provisions - -
Totul 41.65 41.14
Depreciation, amortization (in Rs. crore)

~ For the year
Patticulars ended 31st March Forthio yearandad S (st
2025 March 2024

Property, Plant and equipment 0.18 0.16
Intangible Assets 45.82 45.67
Tofal 46.00 45.83
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Note:-23
A. Fair Value Measurements
(i) Category wise classification of Financial Instruments

Heomsge

% Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value in these financial statement and are grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are defined based on the

observability of significant inputsto the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
Level 3: Unobservable inputs forthe asset or liability

a)The carrying values and fair values of financial instruments by categories as at 31st March 2025 are as follows:

{in Rs. crore)

< Fair Value
’ Particulars Carrying Value Leveld Level 2 Level 3
+ |Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss ('FVTPL’)
NG /|investment in Mutual Funds - -
1 Total - -
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
(i) Investments - -
(ii) Loans 0.01 0.01
(iiiy Other Financial Assets 3.35 3.35
Total 3.36 3.36
al (in Rs. crore)
Fair Value
% Particulars Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
7 Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
(i) Borrowings 477.00 477.00
(i) Trade Payables 26.93 26,93
(ii) Other Financial Liabilties 16.90 16.90
F [ow 93.90 753.90
b) The carrying values and fair values of financial instruments by categories as at 31st March 2024 are as follows:
e (in Rs. crore)
Fair Value
Particulars Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss ('FVTPL')
Investment in Mutual Funds - -
Total - -
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
(i) Investments v .
(i) Loans - -
(iii) Other Financial Assets 3.98 3,98
Total 3.98 3.98
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ot (in Rs. crore)
Fair Value
Particulars Carrying Value Ceval 4 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
(i) Borrowings 483,57 - - 483.57
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 7.47 - - 7.47
Total 491.04 491.04

The management assessed thatcash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to
the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. Methods and
assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent with those used for the financial year 2023-24. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

i) The fair value of investments in mutual fund units ( if any) is based on the Net Asset Value (NAV') as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the published statements as at Balance
Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors.

ii) The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost in these financial statements are at reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company
does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.

iii) The carrying amounts of curent financial assets and current financial liabilities approximate their fair value mainly due to their short term nature.

* During the financial year 2024-25 and 2023-24, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements.

B. Financial Risk Management
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The Company'’s principal financial assets include loans to related parties, trade and other receivables,
and cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations. The Company's activities expose it to some of the financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

a) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk mainlybcomprises Interest rate risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risk includes borrowings, trade receivables, trade payable and other non derivative financial instruments.

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

The company operates domestically and is exposed to insignificant foreign currency risk (since receipts & payments are received in Indian Rupees) .
(i) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of change in market interest rate. The company manages its interest risk in accordance
with the companies policies and risk objective. Financial instruments affected by interest rate risk includes deposits with banks. Interest rate risk on these financial instruments are very low as interest
rate is fix for the period of financial instruments. The Company has a floating interest rate bearing loan the interest sensitivity @ 50 basis points of the same is given below.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 31st March
31st March 2025 2024
Rs in Crores Pre Tax Post Tax | Pre Tax Post Tax
Interest rates- Increase by 50 basis points (50 bps) 2.39 1.78 2.42 1.81
Interest rates- Decrease by 50 basis points (50 bps) -2.39 -1.78 -2.42 -1.81
b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's
receivables from customers and investment. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to clients, including outstanding accounts receivable. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. currently company has
dealt with NHAI (National Highvay Authority of India) only therefore company have minimal credit risk.

Trade and other receivable

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in
which the customer operates, ziso has an influence on credit risk assessment.
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Heonsge

Note:- 24 Related Party Transactions
Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" are as under:
List of Related Parties where control exists and also related parties with whom transactions

a)

have taken place and relationships.

(i) Holding Company
Ircon International Limited

(i) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Board of Directors

Name

Desi@ation

Shri Yogesh Misra

Chairman w.e.f from 01.02.2024

Shri Masood Ahmad Najar

Director w.e.f 02.08.2021

Smt Marzia Fatima

Director w.e.f 23.01.2024

Shri Rohit Parmar

Director upto 24.04.2024

Shri Abheejit Kumar Sinha

Director w.e.f 24.04.2024 till 20.12.2024

Shri Santanu Mukherjee

Director w.e.f 03.01.2025

Other Members identified as Key Management Personnel ( KMP)

Name

Designation

Shri Uttam Shamrao Thorat

Chief Executive Officer w.e.f 01.04.2024

Smt Rachna Tomar

Chief Financial Officer w.e.f 01.04.2022

Company Secretary

Name

Designation

Smt Pooja Gurwala

Company Secretary w.e.f 28.07.2023

83

@/




IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

b)

Transactions with Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the Company are as follows:

HEomsge

(in Rs. crore)

SMo. |Particulars tstMarch 2025 | S1stMarch 2024
1 Short term employee benefits 0.84 0.80
2  |Post employment benefits 0.12 0.11
3  |Other long-term employee benefits 0.02 0.02
4  |Termination benefits X .
5 |Sitting fees g 2
Total 0.98 0.93

Transactions with related parties are as follows:

(in Rs. crore)

. Nature of For the year ended | For the year ended
Sl b i Name ofrelafed party relationship 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
1 [Sale of goods and services - z
1.1 |Contract Revenue Ircon International Limited  |Holding Company - -
1.2 |RentIncome Ircon International Limited  |Holding Company - -
Ircon International Limited
2 Purchase of goods and services Work Expenses and Holding Company 67.83 45.70
maintenance
Reimbursement of rent expense Ircon International Limited  |Holding Company 0.03 0.03
4 |Reimbursement of Guarantee charges Ircon International Limited  [Holding Company 0.03 -
5 Interest Expense
5.1 |interest Expense on Loan Ircon International Limited  |Holding Company 0.86 -
: Ircon International Limited !
6 |Advances Paid Recoupable advances given Holding Company (20.70) 17.50
7 Loan Received during the year Ircon International Limited Holding Company 18.57 -
Medical Advance to KMP ( Asset) fes Rema o1 KMP 0.01 ’
Company Secretary
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c) Outstanding balances with the related parties are as follows:

HEomsge

(in Rs. crore)

] i 4 As at As at
\ S.No. Nature of transaction Name of related party Nature of relationship 31st March 2025 34st March 2024
1 |Equity Received ( Liability) Ircon International Limited Holding Company 150.00 150.00
2 |Advance and Claims Recoverable (Ircon International Limited Holding Company - 20.70
3 |Borrowings Ircon International Limited Holding Company 18.57 -
4  |Medical Advance to KMP ( Asset) Smt Pooja Gurwala Co. Secretary ( KMP) 0.01 -
5 |Amount Payable towards
5.1 |Trade Payables Ircon International Limited Holding Company 22.03 68.21
% 5.2 |Other Payables Ircon International Limited Holding Company 0.08 -
5.3 |Money withheld Ircon International Limited Holding Company 12.88 3.41
\\E\?D d) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
() Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
(i) Outstanding balances of related parties at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs through banking transactions. These balances are
interest free.
(i) The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
(iv) IrconSGTL hadfour Part-time Directors during the financial year 2024-25, nominated on the Board by the holding company, do not draw any

remuneration from the Company. No sitting fee is paid to the Part-time Directors. -
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Note:-25  Service Concession Arrangements (SCA)
Public-to-private service concession arrangements arc recorded in accordance with Appendix "C"- Segvice Concession Arrangements to Ind AS-115-
"Revenue from Contract with customers”, This SCA is falling within this appendix's scope as both the conditions set out below are met:

a)  The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what
price; and
b)  The grantor controls- through ownership, beneficial entitlement, or otherwise- any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of

the term of the arrangement.

An intangible asset is recognized to the extent that the operator reccives the right to charge users of the public service, provided that these charges are
conditional on the degree to which the service is used.

These intangible assets are initially recognized at cost, which is understood as the fair value of the service provided plus other direct costs directly
attributable to the operation. They are then amortized over the term of the concession.

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (IrconSGTL) (the operator) has entered into a service concession arrangement with National Highway
Authority of Tndia (NHAT) dated 15th June 2015 in terms of which NHAI (the grantor) has authorized the company to develop, finance, design,
engineer, procure, construct, operate and maintain the Project of four laning of Shivpuri Guna Section and to exercise and/or enjoy the rights,
powers, benefits, privileges authorizations and entitlements upon its completion. In terms of the said agreement Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited
has an obligation to complete construction of the project of four laning of Shivpuri Guna section and to keep the project assets in proper working
condition including all projects assets whose lives have expired.

The Concession period shall be 20 years commencing from the appointment date. At the end of the concession period, the assets will be transferred
back to National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). In case of material breach in terms of agreement the NHAI and IrconSGTL have right to
terminate the agreement if they are not able to cure the event of default in accordance with such agreement.

The Company recognizes revenue and cost in accordance with Ind AS 115 by reference to the construction's stage of completion. The Company
measures contract revenue at the fair value of the consideration receivable. During the arrangement's consteuction phase, the Company's assets of
782.58 crores (representing its accumulating right to be paid for providing construction services) is classified as an intangible assets (license to charge
user of the infrstructure), which was completed in 2018-19 and Phase 1I completed in 2023-2024. The construction of 1Ind Phase of the Toll Road
started in Financial year 21-22 and provisional completion of the same was received in 17-12 2022 and second provisional completion on 01-06-2023.
The final completion certificate of Phasc 1T was received on 21st February 2025 (COD) with effective date from 10th May 2024. As on 31st March
2025, Rs Nil( last year Rs Nil ) has been shown under Intangible Asset under development. The Company has recognized nil profit on construction
of intangible assets under service concession arrangement The Revenue recognized in relation to construction of intangible assets under service
concession arrangement represents the fair value of services provided towards construction of intangible asscts under service concession arrangement.
"The operation of toll road has commenced from 7th June 2018 and that of Phase II for 10.40 kms from 17-12-2022 and for further 1.99 kms from
01-06-2023. The company has recognised usage fee as revenue of Rs.166.77 Crores ( last year Rs 166.16 crores) from operation of toll road for the
year ended 31.03.2025.

Concession fee and its premium is seen as being paid for carning the revenue and is treated as a charge against revenue. During the period concession
fees of Rs 27.06 Crores ( Last year Rs 25.77 Crores) to NHAI has been paid as per terms of the concession agreement . Usage fee collected over and
above the traffic cap as per the concession agreement is tesmed as excess fee. This SCA is due to be renegotiated as per clause number 28 and 29 of

the concessionaire agreement.

Major Maintenance Obligations

“Major Maintenance Obligations’ includes undertaking major maintenance such as resurfacing of pavements, repairs to structures, and repairs and
refurbishment of tolling system and other equipment. These obligations are recognized and measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. The provision for the resurfacing is built up in accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 37 .
Timing and amount of such cost are estimated and recognised on straight line basis over the period at the end of which the overlay is estimated to be
carried out based on technical evaluation by independent experts.

Construction Contracts
In terms of the disclosure required in Ind AS -115 "Revenue from Contract with Customers" , the amount considered in the financial statements up to
the balance sheet date are as follows:-

(in Rs. crore)

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Revenue recognized from construction services - 2.86
Revenue recognised from toll-Usage fee 166.77 166.16
Aggregate amount of cost incurred and recognized in Profit/Loss - 2.86

-

Gross amount due from Client for Contract - =
- tb""UNA b
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Note:- 26 Disclosure as required by Ind AS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements"
There has been no change in the material accounting policies in the current financial year in
comparison with last year, which would have any impact on the presentation of the financial

statements.

Note:- 27 Disclosure as required by Ind AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors"

There has been no change in the accounting estimates or policies in the current financial year ,
and hence there is no financial impact of the same.

\!

Filla
45, ({\)\._

/'()C\T SF
O -

rfﬂ
\

87
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Note:- 28 Employee Benefits
a. The employees in Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited ate posted on
Deputation basis from Ircon International Limited (Holding Company).
b. In terms of accounting policy of the Company (Note No. 2.2.7) and arrangement
with the Holding Company, the provision for Retirement Benefits such as
provident fund, pension, gratuity, post tetitement medical benefits, Leaves and
other terminal benefits of nominated employees is being made by Holding company
in terms of Ind AS-19. The amount paid ot payable towards provident fund,
pension, gratuity, post retirement medical benefits, Leaves and other terminal
benefits to the holding company are included in "Employee Benefit Expenses”
(Note 20).
c. Provident Fund Contribution of the employees on nomination/secondment have
been regulatly deposited by the holding company with its P.F Trust.

Note:- 29 Foreign exchange recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

NIL
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Note:- 30 Earnings Per Share
Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 ‘Barnings per share’
Basic EIPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the equity holders after considering the effect of dilution by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into cquity shares.

(i) Basic and diluted carnings per share (in Rs.)

For the year | For the year
Y Particulars Note ended 31st | ended 31st
March 2025 | March 2024
Profit attributable to Equity holders (Rs. in crore) (i1) (22.58) (6.39)
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic and Diluted EP'S (idi) 15.00 15.00
Earnings per share (Basic) (1.51) (0.43)
Earnings per share (Diluted) (1.51) (0.43)
I"ace value per share 10.00 10.00
(ii) Profit attributable to equity shareholders (used as numerator) (Rs. in crore)
For the year | For the year
Particulars ended 31st | ended 31st
9_) March 2025 | March 2024
Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss (22.58) (6.39)
Profit attributable to Equity holders of the company used for computing EPS: (22.58) (6.39)
(iii) Weighted average siumber of equity shares (used as denominator) (Nos. in crores)
(_\? For the year | For the year
Particulars ended 31st | ended 31st
March 2025 | March 2024
Opening balance of issued equity shares 15 15
Iiquity shares issued during the year = i
Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Basic EPS 15 15
Dilution Effect:
Add: Weighted average numbers of potential equity shares outstanding during the ycar - -
Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Diluted EPS 15 15

Note:- 31 Impairment of Assets

In compliance of Ind AS 36 "Impairment of Assets", the Company has reviewed the assets at year-end for indication of
impairment loss, if any, as per the accounting policy of the Company. As there is no indication of impairment, no

impairment loss has been recognised during the year.

Note:- 32 Provisions, Contingencies and Commitments
(i) Provisions

The nature of provisions provided and movement in provisions during the year as per Ind AS 37
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(ii) Contingent Liabilities

ieamsy

Disclosure of Contingent Liabilitics as per Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets is as under: (in Rs Crore)
i Claims settled during the year
Asacstsr | MOGHOR TG e Total Claims | Asat3lst
YL Fargenae March 2024 d“"‘e‘gt‘he opening 2“‘. ok i:d’“‘“: Settled during | March 2025
. balance s ity the year
a) |Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts: = i = - - 2
Guaranices (excluding financial guaratees) issued by the
b) company on behalf of 3 3 i 3 5 r
Other momney for which company is contingent liable ( Rs
©)  |in Croxes) A i = = - r 5
AN Clains intimated by Independent Engineer of NFLAI on account of
penaities . The Company s in communication with NHAI for removal of 1697 16.97
these clains, as it is felt by the Company that any delay/ defanlt is being ¢ E i : )
ingposed it not on acconnt of the Company. “*"
16.97 - - - - 16.97

AN The Companyis a party to certain claims raised by NHAI related 1o delays, non achievement of milestones, damages in O
in terms of provisionsof the contract, These claims amonnting 1o Rs. 16.97 crore (Re. 16.97 croves), is shown as contingent liability above. The Company has also made counter clainms on N
terms of the contract of Rs. 96.98 crore (Rs. 96.98 crores).

oM works, ete. These elaims are being contested by the company as being not adwmissible
HAI admissible as per the

&5 (iii) Commitments (in Rs. crore)
Particulars Foot Note As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
a) |Capital Commitments
Istimatd amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advance) and = o
not provuded for: 1
b) |Other Commitments
@ Concessainare fees payable to NITAT till end of Concessionaire petiod of the Toll Road 395.89 422.95
o) ( refer Note 25 SCA)
395.89 422.95
Foot Note:
(in Rs. crore)
1 S.No |Capital Commitments As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
1 Tistimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Property, Plant and Hquipment - =
stimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Investment Property - -
3 |Lstimated amount of contracts temaining to be executed on Intangible Assets under - -
development
Total - -

Note:- 33 Segment Reporting

The Company is openting in only one operating Segment and hence disclosure as per Ind As 108 " Operating Segment" is not applicable
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Note:- 34 Revenue from contract with customers

A. Disaggregation of Revenue
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers into operating segment and type of product

or services:
(in Rs. crore)

For the year ended 31st Masch 2025
Method. for Total as per
: Revenue as per Ind AS 115 meTHUE Statement of
Type of Product or Services pedoriance Other Profit and
obligation Revenue Loss
/Segment
. Input | Output 3
Domestic Total Method |Method Reporting
Others = = - - - -
‘Total 167.21 167.21 - 167.21 - 167.21

Out of the total revenue recognised under Ind AS 115 during the year, Rs 166.77 crore is recognised at a point in time.

(in Rs. crore)

For the year ended 31st March 2024
Method for
i Total as per
measuring pE
Revenue as per Ind AS 115 performance Siatemeni of
Type of Product or Services obligation Other Profit and
Revenue Loss
/Segment
. Input | Output ;
Report
Dosmestic Total Method |Method eporting
Highway 169.43 169.43 169.43 - 169.43
Others = 5 i 2 = 3
Total 169.43 169.43 - 169.43 - 169.43

Out of the total revenue recognised under Ind AS 115 during the year, Rs 2.86 Crore is recognised over a petiod of time and Rs. 166.16

crore recognised point in time.

B. Revenuc from Monthly passes issued for Toll to Vehicles are issued as per requirement of the customers, the entire amount of which is
booked as revenue on the date of such transaction. Such monthly passes are non refundable in nature.

C. Contract balances (in Rs. crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March | 31st March
2025 2024
Trade Receivables (Note 8.1) 0.50 0.71
Contract Assets - -
Contract Liabilities - -

(i) Trade receivables are non-intetest bearing and the customer profile includes Toll receipts for use of Toll collected by the Toll Collection
Agency for the Company and also include lease payments received from Lessees to whom area has been leased for petrol pump and rest
area. Project executed by the Company is under BOT ( built operate transfer) model and the payments are on account of Toll Collection

and Lease rentals for leased area.
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(i) Contract Assets are recognised over the period in which services are performed to represent the Company's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. It includes balances due from customers under construction contracts that arise
when the Company receives payments from customers as per terms of the contracts however the revenue is recognised over the period
under input method. Any amount previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables on satisfaction of the

condition attached i.c. future service which is necessary to achieve the billing milestone.

Movement in contract balances during the year
(in Rs. crore)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March| 31st March
2025 2024

Contract asset at the Beginning of the year - -

Contract asset at the end of the year - -

Net increase/decrease - =

(iii)  Contract liabilities relating to construction contracts are balances due to customers, these atise when a particular
milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised to date under the input method and zdvance received in long term
construction contracts. The amount of Advance received gets adjusted over the construction period as and when
invoicing is made to the customer.

(in Rs. crore)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March| 31st March
2025 2024
Contract liabilities at the beginning of the year - =
Contract liabilities at the end of the year - =
Net increase/decrease y Z
D. Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from: (in Rs. crore)
As at As at
Particulars 31st March| 31st March
2025 2024
Amount included in contract liabilities at the beginning 5 B
of the year
Performance obligation satisfied in previous years - -

E. Performance obligation
Information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied
or partially unsatisfied) as at 31st March are, as follows:

(in Rs. crore)
As at As at
31st March 31st March
2025 2024
Within one year - -

More than one year to 2 years - -
More than 2 yeats & -
Total s =
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Note:-

35 Leases

a) Company as a Lessee

HConsy

The Company as a lessee has entered into lease contracts, for office space . Before the adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company
classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance lease or an operating lease. These leases are in nature

of short term leases or low value leases and are operating leases.

Right of Use Assets

"The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements duting the year is Nil.

Lease Liabilities

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movements during the yeat:

(in Rs. crore)
As at 31st March 2025

Balance at April 1, 2024
Addition

Accredition of interest
Payments

Balance at March 31, 2025
Cutrent

Non-cutrent

Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

(in Rs. crore)

For the year ™ For the year
ended 31st ended 31st
March 2025 March 2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets - -
Interest expense on lease liabilities - -
Expense relating to short-term and low value leases (Refer Note 19) 0.05 0.05
0.05 0.05

b) Compﬁny as a Lessor

The Company has given a demarcated area adjacent to the Toll Road, within the terms of the Setvice Concession Arrangement
with NHAI, on Lease for a Petrol Pump to be operated by Hindustan Petroleum Company Limited ( HPCL ) and Lease and
opetations of Rest Area to Synergy Engineers Group Private Limited. During the year an amount of Rs 0.20 Crores ( Rs 0.19
Crores) had accrued from HPCL and Rs 0.24 Crores (Rs 0.22 Crores) from Synergy as Lease rentals.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:

(in Rs. ctote)

As at As at
31st March 2025  31st March 2024
Within one year 0.47 0.25
After one yeat but not more than five years 1.90 0.90
More than five years 1.67 1.92
4.04 3.07
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Note:-

36

HEoIsg

Information in respect of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as required by Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)

(in Rs. crore)

S.No.

Particulars

As at 3lst
March 2025

As at 31st
March 2024

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to
any supplier as at the end of each accounting year:

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

94




Note:-37

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

Additional regulatory information

Disclosure of ratios

HEansy

Particulars Numerator Denominator Ma;al; 53 st Ma;::)];flst % change Besn t{:::: ;;'ge s
This ratio has improved due
to decrease in Current
Current ratio Current Assets  [Current Liabilities 1.06 0.82 29.27% liabilities on account of
reduction of Trade payables
during the year
: : Sharshediats Thi_s ratio has increasgd Que
Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Equity 2594 11.80 119.83%  |to higher losses resulting in a
lower networth,
Ean]mgs ijjr c}f]bl Debt  service
ser\;ce i " nterest & Leasel
Debt service coverage ratio RE Ao T Payments + 1.99 230 -13.48% NA
+ Non-cash| 7 .
’ Principal
operating Répayments
expenses
The ratio has deteriorated on
Net Profits afte account of higher losses.
; : taxes - [Aiyemmge 3 primarily due to higher
Return on equity ratio Shareholder’s -0.76 -0.14 -442.86% B ;
Preference Equi provision created for Major
e quity : g ;
Dividend maintenance activities during
the year.
Inventory turnover ratio SC‘:;:; aE poods Average Inventory NA NA NA NA
Net credit sales i Trade
Trade receivables turnover ratio Gross credit sales| Rcccifah]c 1.56 1.45 7.59% NA
- sales return
Net credit] The increase in the ratio is
purchases Slieae Trade due to higher Toll Operation
Trade payable turnover ratio Gross credit Pa abﬁ:s 1.53 0.91 68.13% and maintenance expenses
purchases |88 and reduction in trade
purchase return payables during the year
The improvement in the ratio
Net sales = Total|Working capital = is on account of more
Net capital turnover ratio sales - sales|Current assets - 25.80 -5.38 579.55% efficient working capital
return Current liabilities management of the
Company.
Net profit ratio has
deteriorated, on account of
Net profit ratio Net Profit PEE gl = IOl O 0,04 250,0q% | ‘igher losses, primerily doe
sales - sales return to higher provision created
for Major maintenance
activities during the year.
Capital Employed = The ratio has deteriorated
; Tangible Net Worth Heic ugleeiostes oo
Return on capital employed Earmngs L i Total Debt + 0.04 0.07 -42.86% Sripmt o7 1ghes PpsIon
interest and taxes Deforred Tax : created fm: M?_]or
Liahility mainienance activities during
the vear.
Retun on investment AL (A Investment NA NA NA NA

Income)
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xviil
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Since Company have no Lease in the books threfore no disclosure is required.

"The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year ending 31st March 2025
and 31st March 2024.

The Company has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year ending 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024.

During the financial year 2024-25 and 2023-24, the Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entity(is), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, sccurity or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

During the financial year 2024-25 and 2023-24, the Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), including
foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any loans and advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMP and other related parties in
the financial year ending 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024, except for an amount of Rs 0.01 Crores ( Rs NIL) , being medical
advance to Company Secretary, which is as per Company's consistent HR policies.

The Company do not have any Benami property as on 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024, where any proceeding has been
initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company does not have any immovable properties as at 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024.

Company is not required to submit statement of current assets with the bank and therefore reconcilation of the statement filed by the
company with bank and the books of accounts is not applicable.

The Company does not have any investment property as at 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024

During the year 2024-25 and 2023-24, the company has not revalued any of its Property,plant and equipment , the Company has not
revalued any item of property, plant and equipment and Intangible Asset.

The Company does not have any transactions in financial year 2024-25 and 2023-24, where the company has not used the borrowings
from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not entered in any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Company has not received any grants and donations during the year ending 31st March 2025 and period ending 31st March 2024.

The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority in the financial year 2024-25 and 2023-24.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

There are no charges or satisfaction of charge yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the Statutory Period in
the financial year ending 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024.

The Company have not entered into any scheme(s) of arrangements during the year ending 31st March 2025 and period ending 31st
March 2024,

The Company do not have any prior period errors in financial year ending on 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024 to be disclosed
separately in Statement of changes in equity. -

=~
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Note:- 38 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (CSR)

The applicability of CSR under section 135 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable as its average net profit of the Company is
Nil due to continuing losses for three years. [Tence no CSR expenditure has been incurred during the period.

Note :- 39 Other disclosures
a) The company has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks and other parties. Sofar as trade/other

payables and loans and advances are concerned, the balance confirmation letters were sent to the parties. Balances of some of the
Trade Receivables, Other assets , Trade and other payables are subject to confirmation/reconciliations and consequential
adjustment, if any. Reconciliations are carried out on an on-going basis. However, management does not expect to have any
material financial impact of such pending confirmations /reconciliations.

b) In the opinion of the management, the value of current assets, loans and advances on realization in the ordinary course of business,
will not be less than the value at which these are stated in the balance sheet.

¢) Certain prior periods amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current period presentations, as represented below .
These reclassifications have no effect on the reported results of operations. Also, previous year figures are shown under bracket ()
to differentiate from current year figures.

(in Rs. crore)

Amount in previous | Amount in current
. Note ‘ 2 2 " Net
Particulars year's financial year's financial .
no. difference
statements statements
Current Liabilities- Other
financial liabilitics
15.3 6.80 0.04 6.76

Other Payables (including
Staff Payable)

Current Liabilities- Other
financial liabilities

Other DPayables - Related 15.3 7 0.07 0.07)
Party - Holding Company

Current financial liabilities

Trade Payables-

Other than Micro, Small & 15.2 . 6.69 (6.69)
Medium Enterprises

Total 6.80 6.80 -

d) Recent Corporate pronouncements

The Company has adopted certain new accounting standards and amendments effective from April 1, 2024. Ind AS 117, Insurance
Contracts, which replaces Ind AS 104, provides comprehensive guidance on the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of
insurance contracts; however, it had no impact on the Company’s financial statements as the Company has not entered into any insurance
contracts.

Further, an amendment to Ind AS 116, Leases, rclating to leasc liabilities arising from sale and leaseback transactions, was also notified.
Since the Company has not undertaken any such transactions, the amendment did not affect its financial statements. As of the reporting
date, there are no new standards that have been notified but are not yet effective.

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

( Santanu Mukherjee)

Director
DIN - 10895834

For SRJ N & Co LLP ( Masood Alimad)

Chartered Accountants Or
Firm Reg. No.: 009063N /N500041 DIN - 99008553

g

(CA Jai Prakash Rarh )

Partner D

M. No. 501283 ﬂ’.
Place : New Delhi (Rachna T'omar) (Uttam Shamrao Thorat) (Pooja Gurwala)
Date : 02nd May 2025 Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary

UDIN : 25501283BMOZHD4037
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

The preparation of financial statements of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for
expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act, based
on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide
their Audit Report dated 02 May 2025.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not
to conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of Ircon Shivpuri Guna
Tollway Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 under Section 143 (6)(a) of the
Agct:

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

’

T

Place: New Delhi Teg Singh
Dated: 07.07.2025 Principal Director of Audit
Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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